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A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIR

Auckland’s central city makes a significant contribution to both the Auckland
region and New Zealand’s economy, delivering the fourth largest GDP after
the Wellington, Canterbury and Waikato regions. Its unprecedented growth is
broadly based, with more and more people working, living and visiting the city
and around $14 billion of public and private sector investment planned over
the next decade.

Heart of the City is playing an active role to ensure the voice of business
is heard as plans for the city are developed. Our Chief Executive works
passionately with our dedicated team to pursue opportunities to promote
the city centre and to address issues that impact adversely on the business
environment.

The board continues to take prudent steps to manage its governance
obligations. The organisation achieved an unqualified audit of our financial
accounts and also met legislative requirements relating to health and safety.

This has been my first year as Chair and I'd like to thank both our staff and my
fellow Executive Committee members for their outstanding commitment.
Andrew Stringer, Shane McMahon and Chris Cherry have stepped down after
many years of service and their contribution will be missed. For Executive
Committee members continuing in their role and others joining us, we have

a stimulating time ahead with two milestone opportunities on the three year

horizon - the America’s Cup and APEC.

MARTIN SNEDDEN
INDEPENDENT CHAIR
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Heart of the City champions a successful city centre economy on behalf of
thousands of businesses within our boundary. Growth on all fronts is prolific
and whilst this is inspiring and exudes confidence, we are well aware of the
challenges it presents.

Our work includes promotion of the CBD offering and events that bring
people into the city centre. This year our marketing profiled the face of
local businesses through our Lovebites campaign, which showcases the
concentrated diversity of the evolving urban experience. Restaurant Month
has gone from strength to strength and is now a much-anticipated event on
the annual calendar.

Our advocacy has agitated for proactive action to mitigate the impact of
construction; asked for a united effort to end homelessness; generated
discussion on how to address begging before it becomes the norm on our city
streets; and asked for the needs of business to be heard and respected.

Heart of the City is a small organisation with a large brief and relationships
are vital to our success. Along with acknowledging our talented team, I'd

like to thank our marketing partners and others we work with to achieve our
goals. We are excited by the prospects ahead to take maximum advantage of
opportunities over the next three years.

VIV BECK
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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AUCKLAND’S CITY CENTRE IS AN
EXTRAORDINARY PLACE WITH UNIQUE
CHARACTER AND PHYSICAL ATTRIBUTES.

A UNIQUE CITY CENTRE

The concentration of businesses, people and economic and cultural activity
here is unparalleled in New Zealand. Around 15% of Aucklanders work in the
city centre, an area that accounts for only 0.08% of the overall Auckland
region. This concentrated area is one of the fastest growing parts of Auckland,
contributing around 20% of Auckland’s GDP and 7.4% of New Zealand’s

in the last year. Retail spend has grown by nearly 50% since 2010 - now

generating $1.8 billion per year in sales.

The city centre is home to over 11,000 businesses, 114,000 employees
and close to 40,000 residents. About 200,000 people visit the city every
day including over 50,000 students who either study at one of the two
universities or with other education providers within the CBD boundary.

The CBD’s density is one of its biggest assets; a 2017 Auckland Council report
highlighted the significant economic impact it provides. Our CBD has a
unique combination of density and connectivity, which enables a high level of
productivity. Our focus is to further leverage this opportunity by promoting
and fostering an environment where people can work close to one another, get
around easily and connect with each other.



HEART OF THE CITY’S MANDATE IS TO
CHAMPION A SUCCESSFUL CENTRAL CITY
ECONOMY THAT IS ACCESSIBLE, VIBRANT
AND A GREAT PLACE TO DO BUSINESS.

AT THE HEART OF IT: OUR MEMBERS

We represent our members who are property owners, business owners,
occupants and tenants of commercially rated property that sits within our

defined boundary.

We engage with local and central government, community groups and decision
makers to ensure business interests are represented throughout policy and
decision-making processes that impact the CBD.

Understanding what matters to our members and working with them to create
and leverage opportunities as our city centre continues to grow provides a
strong framework for our activity and ensures we remain member centric and
outcome focused.

Over the past year we have continued to grow our engagement with members
and have sought their views on a number of issues including begging, the
impact of construction, and loading and servicing. This guides our priority
settings and underpins our ability to provide informed commentary and views
on issues that matter to business.

We connect with our membership in a number of ways including through face-
to-face visits, regular newsletters and member events. We also continue to
invite businesses to participate in a number of events and campaigns designed
to drive visitation to the city centre. Over the past year we have also upgraded
our corporate website to more closely align the work we do for business with
the work we do to promote destination Auckland.



RAISING THE VOICE
OF BUSINESS




RAISING THE VOICE OF BUSINESS

One of Heart of the City’s priorities is to ensure the views of business are heard clearly by decision makers

and influencers in Auckland’s future. Decisions made about the city centre impact on the livelihood of our
members, their place of business, their employees and the clients and customers they connect with every day.
The commercial sector provides opportunities for growth, job creation and social good. Similarly, decision-makers
benefit from the valuable insights businesses have in what’s needed to drive economic growth and productivity.

This year, Heart of the City has collaborated with other Auckland business associations to identify ways in which
the council group can offer more efficient support to the Business Improvement District (BID) programme, and
bring greater attention to the value that the BID programme contributes towards local economic development
across Auckland.

INFLUENCING THE AGENDA

Over the past year we have advocated for business on a number of council proposals including a Targeted Rate
on accommodation providers and a pause in the reduction of the business rates differential.

We are concerned that business seems to be viewed as an easy target to pass on costs and we lobbied council
to honour its commitment to keep reducing the rates differential, currently more than double residential rates.

Heart of the City also lobbied with other BIDs to prevent the introduction of an accommodation supplement.
It was our view that while there are challenges to infrastructure resulting from tourism growth, a targeted rate
on accommodation providers introduced with little notice was not the right mechanism to address it.

Council chose not to adopt our lobbied position on both of these occasions. This was disappointing but we will
continue to advocate for business, both in the upcoming long-term plan deliberations and in the annual plan cycle.

MITIGATING THE IMPACT OF CONSTRUCTION

We continue to represent business interests on major transformation projects, including the City Rail Link.

This year we conducted a construction survey to establish the type of impact the project’s construction was having
on business. From this, we have been able to contribute to the Development Response Plan which outlines how
relevant agencies will mitigate the impact of construction in the affected areas. The City Rail Link now has two
specialist staff managing the interface between development and business and to provide support and activations
to the local business community. We will continue to lobby for improvements in how the city manages change.



ENSURING THE CITY CENTRE REMAINS A
SAFE AND ENJOYABLE PLACE TO BE IS AKEY
PRIORITY FOR HEART OF THE CITY.

A SAFE CITY CENTRE

We work closely with Auckland Council and the police on several initiatives

aimed at increasing safety.

With Auckland Council, we co-fund CityWatch, the programme which
addresses issues relating to public safety, nuisance and inappropriate behaviour.
In response to concerns over the consumption of synthetic cannabis and
associated anti-social behaviour we have increased the presence of guards

and the police have increased the presence of beat staff during the day. With
increased visibility and active management of antisocial issues, there has been
a reduction in reported incidents and improvement in behaviour on the street.

Heart of the City also supports StoreWatch, a communication network
between 150+ city centre retailers and the police to reduce and prevent retail
theft in the city centre. The network gets retailers talking to and looking out
for each other by sharing critical information within the retail community. The
scheme continues to grow and offers significant benefit for very low cost.
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Begging continues to be an area of key focus. In May 2017 we asked members
for their views on begging in the city centre. Respondents told us that begging
is an increasing issue in the city centre, with 93% of members asking for more
to be done to address it. Over the next year, Heart of the City is planning a
programme that aims to positively address begging on the street, and reduce
the impact on businesses operating in the city, their staff and customers.

HOMELESSNESS

We have been active in calling for an end to homelessness in the city centre
and we are delighted that this year has seen a concerted response to support
Housing First, an internationally proven solution, with twenty people in the
city centre already housed.



THE CITY CENTRE IS IN A PERIOD OF
UNPRECEDENTED TRANSFORMATION, WITH
SIGNIFICANT INFRASTRUCTURE, PUBLIC
SPACE, COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL
PROJECTS PLANNED AND UNDERWAY.

CITY CENTRE TRANSFORMATION

We continue to support the city centre’s transformation through our role on
the Auckland City Centre Advisory Board, which is responsible for advising
council on the allocation of the City Centre Targeted Rate for enhancement
projects. We also liaise directly with the agencies delivering public space and
transport transformation projects to consider the opportunities and issues
these projects may have for business and the wider city centre environment.

This year we played a role in ensuring that once the City Rail Link is
completed, Albert Street and Lower Queen Streets will be transformed so
their quality befits an international city centre.

Following regular lobbying from Heart of the City and others, Auckland
Council has released refreshed City Centre and Waterfront plans that show
transport integrated with new public spaces in the city. Our role going forward
will be to ensure that business needs are considered as early as possible as
individual projects develop.



PROMOTING THE
HEART OF THE CITY




OUR DESTINATION MARKETING AND EVENTS
HIGHLIGHT THE CONCENTRATED DIVERSITY
OF THE CITY CENTRE AND INSPIRE PEOPLE
TO VISIT AND SPEND IN THE CITY CENTRE.

PROMOTING THE HEART OF THE CITY

2016 was a seminal year. Our vision and values were reset and a new single brand

identity was launched. This has been further developed in 2017.

Our Lovebites - a creative device introduced last year to showcase and celebrate
the hidden gems and happenings in the heart of the city — have also moved into a
second year. Our winter campaign this year has shared the unique and wonderful
stories of the people behind our city centre businesses.
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BRAND METRICS

SEPTEMBER 2017

AUCKLANDERS

%
PERCEPTION OF THE CITY AS 90 °
ASPIRATIONAL, CULTURED & VIBRANT

o,
PERCEPTION OF THE CITY AS HAVING 827
DIVERSE & EXCITING EXPERIENCES

Y/
MOTIVATED TO VISIT THE CITY AS A V4%
RESULT OF THESE PROMOTIONS

Ad Impact and Brand Health Survey. 400 Auckland respondents.



A KEY STRENGTH FOR HEART OF THE CITY IS OUR ENGAGED
DIGITAL AUDIENCE WHO WE CONNECT WITH ACROSS A
NUMBER OF CHANNELS. OUR ENGAGEMENT LEVELS TELL US
OUR CONTENT IS RELEVANT, USEFUL AND INSPIRING.

AN ENGAGED DIGITAL FOLLOWING

Response to our digital channels has grown from strength to strength again this year.
76% of Aucklanders told us that our digital content encourages them to come into the city centre,
compared to 60% at the same time last year. In addition, 86% said they find our content useful.

WEBSITE FACEBOOK n

TOTAL SESSIONS +77° TOTAL PAGE LIKES 1 60 K
2.3 MILLION R GUE SEPTEMBER 2017
OCT TO SEPT 2017 12 MONTHS

TOTAL ENGAGEMENTS 700K

12 MONTHS TO SEPTEMBER 2017

PEOPLETALKING ABoUTUs 2 () O K

(LIKES AND SHARES)

cy 12 MONTHS TO SEPTEMBER 2017
UNIQUE VISITOR SESSIONS +7”
1.4 MILLION VS PREVIOUS
OCT TO SEPT 2017 12 MONTHS
WHERE NEXT® -i
L)
TOTAL DOWNLOADS 6 0) K
o K
PAGE VIEWS +3 o/ SESSIONS PER DAY 2.6

4.5 MILLION

VS PREVIOUS
OCTTO SEPT 2017 12 MONTHS MONTHLY SESSIONS 8 O K




ARTWEEK OCTOBER 2016

Heart of the City is a sponsor of Artweek Auckland, enabling a number of arts
activations around the city centre. The goal is to build Artweek year on year

to continue to showcase the city’s arts offering, grow art tourism and enhance
community cohesion.

Some of the activations this year included the headline Late Night Art event,
Changing Lanes, where artists created installations in CBD laneways and Arting
Zones, where parking spaces were replaced with art installations, as well as pop
ups in Chancery utilising un-tenanted retail spaces. We also added some new
walks to the Walks of Art and Unlocked Collections schedule, and helped deliver
Gather & Hunt’s streetARTdego in Khartoum Place / Te Ha O Hine.

“Did a great job - fell in love with Auckland city again.
Feeling very inspired. Keep up the good work!”

°/ WEBVISITS
+40 ° vs2015

+ 2% SPEND IN THE CITY CENTRE
1 OVER THE ARTWEEK PERIOD

VS 2015




CHRISTMAS IS THE BIGGEST MONTH ON
THE RETAIL CALENDAR, SO WE WORK
TO MAXIMISE THE OPPORTUNITY FOR
CITY BUSINESSES.

CHRISTMAS 2016

Our Christmas activity positions the city centre as the preferred destination for
gift shopping, events and end of year celebrations, with a theming programme
including the giant Santa above the Queen Street Farmers store and decorations
in key locations as well as a marketing campaign.

The campaign ran for five weeks across several media including digital, Adshels,
street posters, radio and social media.

Although this year’s campaign outperformed 2015, spending results were on par
with the prior year due in part to Christmas falling on a Sunday with Christmas
Eve and Boxing Day also impacted. Total spend in the Heart of the City year on
year was +0.5% over the five week Christmas period.

o/ WEBVISITS
+48 ° vs2o015

+1 M SPEND IN THE CITY CENTRE
VS 2015




FOUR DAYS OF FASHION 2017

In March and April 2017 we revitalised our fashion event, sponsored by Resene,
to be more focused with in-store activations happening over 4 days including:
« The Britomart Fashion Sessions

+ A gig by NZ musician Maala at Topshop

+ Sessions by Australian Fashion Blogger Carmen Hamilton
(of Chronicles of Her fame) at Coach and Moochi

+ And a fashion show at Smith & Caughey

Feedback from retailers was overwhelmingly positive, with queues out the door
on the Friday night and a fantastic atmosphere.

“A massive thank you to everyone involved in Friday’s event at High Street.
With an estimate of nearly 400 people through the doors, and over 200 in

the first 30mins, it was an impressive sight!”

The campaign performed exceptionally well with over 200k views of the eight
fashion Lovebites. This led to delivering excellent awareness, engagement and

click throughs.

+21% X/VSEZBQ\:QSITS 435K PR VALUE




THE SUCCESSFUL LOVEBITES CAMPAIGN
RETURNED FOR ASECOND YEAR,
WITH A MORE PERSONAL FOCUS.

WINTER LOVEBITES 2017

We were keen to build on the overwhelming success of the Lovebites 2016
campaign and further develop a sense of intrigue and discovery in the city over
winter. ‘Bite sized’ stories from 36 hospitality, retailer and event experiences
were showcased, adding a more personal and human dimension to the campaign.

% OF AUCKLANDERS KNOW MORE ABOUT
7 THE CITY AS RESULT OF THE CAMPAIGN
VS 2016

+ 8 4"/0 HEART OF THE CITY SPEND

o VS 2016

%/ WEBVISITS
+7 ° Vs 2016

1 M LOVEBITE VIDEO VIEWS




RESTAURANT MONTH AUGUST 2017

We continue to experience a growing and thriving restaurant scene in the city
centre, and 35% of Aucklanders tell us dining is their top reason to visit the
city centre.

Held over the quieter winter period, participating restaurants tell us that they
love getting involved in the event, and we continue to appreciate the support

from American Express, Viva and ATEED.

Last year, it was the unusual, quirky events that sold out first and received the
most interest. This insight helped shape the “Eat Odd” theme supported by
interesting, less expected food photography. Most of the dining events sold
out within the first week of August, and almost all sold out well in advance of
the event.

We received great feedback from participating restaurants this year:

PARTICIPATING + 2% WEB VISITS
1 RESTAURANTS 7 VS 2016

+1 9, PARTICIPANTS’ SPEND 1 M PRVALUE
o VS 2016 o




THROUGH EVENT SPONSORSHIP AND
SUPPORT WE ENCOURAGE EVENTS THAT
ARE UNIQUE TO THE CITY CENTRE.

EVENTS SPONSORSHIP 2016 / 17

This year, we continued to support city-based events through sponsorship and

in-kind marketing support.

Our focus is to develop and support events and festivals that are unique to the

central city and in keeping with a contemporary urban experience.

Events sponsorship allows us to add another element of discovery, interest,

and vibrancy to our key marketing pillars. More importantly, businesses have

the opportunity to leverage the city visitation and buzz provided by a healthy

annual calendar of events.

TIMELINE

8-16 OCTOBER 2016
NOVEMBER 2016
MARCH 2017

24 APRIL - 17 MAY 2017
10 - 15 MAY 2017

20 - 21 MAY 2017

14 - 31 JULY 2017

ARTWEEK IN THE CITY CENTRE

THE FARMERS SANTA PARADE

THE AUCKLAND ARTS FESTIVAL

THE INTERNATIONAL COMEDY FESTIVAL
THE INTERNATIONAL WRITERS FESTIVAL
WINETOPIA

THE INTERNATIONAL FILM FESTIVAL
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THE CITY CENTRE’S

VITAL SIGNS
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MONITORING AND MEASURING

We keep our finger on the pulse of the city centre through regular monitoring
and measuring of key information including consumer perceptions, pedestrian
counts and spending. We also employ population data and information about
the numbers and types of businesses operating within our area from agencies

including Statistics NZ and Auckland Council.




AUCKLAND’S CITY CENTRE

BUSINESS NUMBERS BY INDUSTRY SECTOR IN THE CITY CENTRE?

43%
22% PROFESSIONAL,
RENTAL AND ° FINANCE AND
REAL ESTATE 2 /o ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
. 7% 4%
39’860 (+14%) ACCOMMODATION WHOLESALE 2%
RESIDENTS? AND FOOD TRADE MANUFACTURING
2%
53’000 EDUCATION
UNIVERSITY STUDENTS!
2%
114,264 (+3.8%) o MEDIA
WORKERS 7/° AND
o § OTHER COMMS
2% 1%
6°/o HEALTH ART AND
RETAIL CARE RECREATION

||\




PERCEPTIONS OF THE CITY CENTRE

47% IS A PLACE THEY LIKE TO VISIT 53% FEELS SAFE TO THEM
ON THE WEEKENDS* GENERALLY*

60”

IS EASY TO GET TO*

DOING BUSINESS IN THE CITY CENTRE

% TOTALHOTC SPEND® % PRIME OFFICE VACANCY®
+1.8*% 3.6"

% TOTAL HOTC TRANSACTIONS® % CBD RETAIL YACANCYS®
+7.8* 3.3%
Sources:

+3%

+3.1%

PEDESTRIAN COUNTS?

$14,332M GDP?

1. Auckland Council. 2. Infometrics - 2016 figure. 3. Statistics New Zealand. 4. City Centre Perceptions Study - December 2016, Buzz Channel. 5. Marketview Ltd 2017.
6. Colliers. 7. Heart of the City. All percentage increases on this spread compare the figure from this reporting period to the one immediately prior.
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Annual Report

Heart of the City Incorporated
For the yaar ended 30 June 2017
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RS Hages Audlt

Independent Auditor's Report

Mewmmarkey, s jlt-.ul-;::
To the members of PRI =l sl
Heart of the City Incorporated i

CISTNELDNE

Opinion

We have audited the special purpose financial statements of Heart of the City Incorporated (thi society) which
COMprise:

*  Ihe slatement of inancial position as a7 30 June 2017,

* the slaterment of comprehensive revenue and axpensea for the year than endad;
*  [he slatement of chengas in nel assatsfaquity for the year then ended;

= (he stalament of cash flows for the yvear then ended; and

*  fhe noles to the financial statements

Inour opinion, fe financial statements on pagea 7 to 19 prezent faidy, in all materisl respects, the financial
pasilion of Heart of the City Incorporated as at 30 Jure 2017, and its financial pefomiance and cash Mows for
the year then andad in accordance with the stated special purpose aceounting pedicias

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) (15As (M2)).
Our responsibilties uncer those siandards are further described in the Audifor's responsibiliies for the audif of
the financial sfatements section of our raparl

Wa are indepandent of Heart of the City Incorporated in accordanca with Professional and Ethical Standard 1
{Revised) Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitionere issuad by the Mew Zaaland Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board, and we have fuffiled our other ethical responsibiliies in accardancs with these requirements,

Wea believe that the audit evidence we have obiained Is sufficient and apprapriate o provide 3 basis for our
opinion

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, o interests in, Hear of the City Incorporated

Othar information

The board are responsible for the ather information presented on pages 5 to B [but does not include the financial
statements and cur auditor's report therean), which wa oblained prior to the dale of this auditor's report. Our
opinion on tha financial statements does not cover the olher information and we do nol express any form of
gudif opinion or assurance conclusion thefeson.

In cannection with our audit of the financial statemants, our responsibilily i& o read the other informaticn
identifiad above and, in doing so, consider whether the athar information is materially incongistent with the
financial statemants or our knowledga obisined in the sodit, or othensise appears to be materally misstated. If,
based on the work we have parformed on the olher infarmation that we obiained prior (o the date of this
auditor's report, we conclude that there is 8 matarial misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact, We have nothing to repor in this regard



RSM

Responsibilities of board for the financial statements

The board are respongible, on behalf of the enfity, for the preparation and Talr presentatiaon af hea financial
statemants in sccordance with the stated epecial purpase accounting policies, and for such internal conlrol as
the board determine is necassary lo anable the preparation of financial siatemeants that are rea from material
misstatement, whathar due [ fraud or arar

In preparing the financial stabements, the board sre responsitle, on behalf of the society, for assessing the
society's ability to continue as a golng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concerm basis of accounting uniess (hose charged with goverrance either intend to liquidste the
socrely or to cease operations, of have no realislic altemalive bui to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjedtives are to obtsin rezsonable assurance about whether the financiol statements as a whele are free
from material misstatement, whathar dus to freud or error, and 1o issue an suditer's raport that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit cenducted in
accordance with 150 (NZ) will always detect a meteral missiatemant when it axiets. Misstatements can arice
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregsate, they could reasonatly ba
expecied to Infleence the decisions of usera taken an the hagis of thess finandal statements. A furthar
description of the auditor’s respansibilifies for the audit of the financial statemants is located at the XRE's
website at;

htips:Axrk govl ngfSheiMwditing Assurance Standards/CurrentStandards/Pages aspx

Who we report to

This report is made solely ta the membars, 83 a body. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state in
tha members those mattars we are required to slate to them in an suditor's report and for no other purpose, To
tha fullest extent permitted by law, wa do not sccept or assume responsibility to aryone othar than Heart of the
City Incorporated and the members as a body, for our werk, for this report, or for the opinions we have fesmesd.

Basis of accounting

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Mote 2 to the spacial purpose financial statements which
describes the basis of accounting  The special purpose financial statements are preparad solely for the
members of Heart of the City Incorporaied. As a result, the special purpose financial statements may nol be
suitable for another purpose

KSm

RSM Hayes Audit 12 Qclober 2017
Auckland
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Approval of Financiat Report

Heart of the City Incerporated
For the year etided 30 June 2017
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Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and

Expense

Heart ofthe City Incorporated

For the vear ended 30 June 2017

HiFTHS It b1

Foruitriian from Exchangs TemsiEacthons
Parie shan IHeamwe 2k 193 303,274
NS IncoMe .16 L0 L)
Qlibvgm Ingame 144 11,511
TonaL Rgeagnung M'egen Exch ange TiAndas kg A0 #3025

Riwernue from Mom -Enchange Tramsaciions
st Coninc - Tar et i Socn mad Baged Fypdnp 1,009,121 1,269,124
ALCHRa COuNCE - DESLisdn ke Beling CamgRgn Tnhdng A e Ao gl
gy ] Mt B o st Fan ' 1EmMn
Chrisemag Copdninubeing AT 1B &4T
Toral s rust frisn M- Exchanpe Tl tions LeE T SALETIL

Total Resenus 43573 LS E Y
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Attu. ANy 3 H A I
Pt By T e iy 19 AT iG55
Audr P 15,435 14,08
Commiclag Fxpamibrl M LGS 13,718
Tomipi e & Pleisrt B3l b L e 33,065 13,513
DHpreciashod, Amennalcn b Lost o Dl oAl T 110757 11,418
Euwavis, Spoamarzhip & Ad vertlsing 275 31 2,53, 5T
Peweraic hicourvingiuegal - FL A
Forgeed k55 o Loan 4400 A K
Cearuer 3| Hape nme 107,376 E£5, T
lAgLarane ¢ (LR g2 1
Legal Fros 5302 A5
g TR o Ty [ B DTS 711 mall
Projoct Casks 1LL 7R
Petoulerram Espenss B8 3,960
oy LEXET 119281
P son read Eppermes 1,285 801 L, 156, TER
LETE B 200 A
WebHbe Hoamg 358 L
Wit RS, AL N i 1 gy ey (FEFN) 123, B4

Fodal Expantas 4,925,831 4507 417

Tital o rpradein S Révenug and [:I:HI'IH- AL Tel, 3

Thap bt 16 EB g v WL prciaprr Ly 1 i ] o P Bkl by ol iy i i it e i ] L e,

AnmoalAepont Mear ol Ha Oy rcorpoeated B B ey Foga P ol 10

RS



Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity

Heart of the City Incovporated
For the year ended 30 June 2017

aokY a0

Accumulated comprehensive revents and eipense

Cipgrimg E-plance | BEHSHT 12Tk
MMEM Rty et Erp oz [ b= waar

Sury|us [ 6wk Werar AL T A

Tolal Comnprehensve Resenue and Exgense Tor Hhe Fesr 30,6818 T

T Aot L) Lt o o parsritr s [ v b Lt o ol o pan = 1,664,352 14831 56T

Total Eqstlty L,654,352 1,635,562
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Statement of Financial Position
Heart of the City incorporated

Asat 30 June 2017
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Statement of Cash Flows

Heart of the City Incovporated
For the year ended 30 June 2017

HaT 1oLk

Cach Flaws fram Operating Activibies
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Heart of the City Incorporated
For the year ended 3¢ June 2017

1. Reparthg Enthby

deant of the City Incorporstad 1o aniness parstied socbety ragisierasd undir th teorpovated Sodaties ot 1938 Haart of the ity
IMEsr param promekas inndke ik butir g8 10 Ayckland Sy

Thescbinanclal statemenits hawe beon approved and wieg automesd e s by tha Baand on 20-Sepoemiess 2017,

2, Staternent of Lomplancs

The repatlng entlly is Heart of the Clty Inconporated, Heart of th City oo atast ' dormicled i b Zoaldnd and is an

L P anad Lo by ragidbersd et (b Ingovpdrangd SociMies st 1908, Huart of die Clty iInnerporated as an Incomporated
SeCaLy B2 reit riCL0ir ety Pt un i thed Py bl Benedltt Entity Intamational Fubdlc Sector Aocountine Standards {“PFEE IFSAS"
and piher appbcablz finanaal reporting sEadands a8 apgerapracs EHak have Bear SUIRGided for use by 118 External Risparting
Avard for Ned-For-Profit sntities. Hosever, it haa chogsn boovalundarily soops the wapnly ol Ehesss sleigldils o Ll g isdion
of Whees: sl purposc Qnanclad sabements i o brandillcng beveards Tl implmoniation, wilh the caee prion af b

WM presentation of ke ranagameanl perscime| dselood i,

“eart of the City Incorporatad is 3 pot-forpront pablee benedt enbty and 12 ellgits te apply Thar 2 Hak-Fer-Prafit PRE PR3
standards on e besis that ICdess not have poilic seceunesbilly 1nd it ic rot daFrd 3 [arge Tha Baard hat dlected v repont
ersisbanl whih T 2 Wok-For P rofll FEE & cqunting SRndar & with the exsapien of the aboes 119m, andin galng 6o has taken
adwantage of Ml appllcaliby Fedycod Prickpper Ragling (“RDR") CRcloaum ord s ums.

The baard conzidars thatttm acccynting polldes adoped .0 these special puroase fnanc sl statewests are speegarfakes bo give
che wzers o dhe Ninanecd 8l GLabaments mearangful Inbormedon sbat he pedarmiaene o pogition of b oogardgation fopthy
CLIFTER] WERF.

2, Effect of Firsl-Time Adopiion of the Majority of PBE Standards on Accounding Poaliziey ang Dlsglosures
Sorgher wan e grghed 30 en SOTG, |t of the Gty InGorporaned prep-ared Specisl Jurpcse fnandial siabemenrns primaHy based
e sy Ke s Zanland Flomclal Raparting Seaadads [T FRE. The iransition to adopting tva majoriar o Tiar 1 Mok For Mgt

SBE Acetunting Sandd te bt b rity sffstEon tha prigr or cunegnd wear g wnes regeieted in the Statement of Comprehed-sme
Apveng angd Evpeneg or Stabomznd of “aneiaa | Porca

PEE IPSAS 13 - Rewe s frowm Mon-Exdiamde Trandsctions
JBE IPSAS 23 prascrlbiea the 1 mancial fepo g raquitgranks lar vk Brigird fnder) Pt an ChArgd brasactcans, Thera ks no
nojiavia wit Aramcind reporbing Weanedarg un s (e prevkaus spacial purpose fremessork, The applicabon of thls sendard affecoed

[aart of the Lty Ingorporptad's prazentatizn of fardeng resemwe with te splinmg of non-ewhangs revenoe Ircmescharg=
- el

4, Summary ¢l Accoanting Polickes

The sigmificant aceeuning pelicles vsed Inthe preparatan of tess finenclal stabarnens Sg5et gk R hawg B dpp. e
canslsbeniby 10 bodh wears presented s thece nandial 3baberents,

4.1 Basis of Fraparation
These fnane lal stalaments have been prepared o Baais af hisb o onan, aiess spedilled Ik the acoonbing prolcie be o,

Thesr fiman |3l Satrments have heen rrepeed on o pon g contar hantid, dnd the aceount g podicies havs baan spplised
conalrherily tresugheie the peiad.

AnmoAReponl Mol the £ty g ot R ETime Papr 11410
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4.2 Functianal and Prezsntational Currancy

Fhees inancdd stadcmeants. aee argianied 0 Mew Zaalend dollars (5 wiiech |5 Heart of the Zaby Ineorparatadts fnctledal curoensy.
Al Smancial ledormztion predented In bew Zanland Eolars bas b s rtbed o the et dolla,

4.3 Revanue

Aty it regpndted 1o tha ko that it probatle that the acenamic Banefit ol B o Heart of the Sty Ineosporated amal
resferue €A e rebably meanured. Revemue | el auned sl uhe FalF vabus of ehee cand|dersnlan pecmived o recsvable. The
tidlpwing speciflc recognitionm criigrla muct e met beforg revsnue iz recpgrised,

Revenua from Mon-Exchange Tranzactions

Aure B mef Ceunads; Reven e

Pervenua from Auckland City Councll rebates b fundieg prowided to Heart ol tha Cilty koo raded for e purpaos of prometing
tFre Inner 2iy BLsheaies Bres Revenls i resnglued Esenly ot the Fudicg pariod.

Fit Eustry £ MRS oI e M p i b Frirkdd

Recoweny of Hesappwrapr|sied Fusds rsfst ey bodurds et med 2o e of the Ciy Inepoper atsd in JELS aler by st Bupd g
By irmghroypetrly bahudn By Rocrmer Chisl Execoubive slex Sweney.

Revenua from Exchange TranzacHons
Mot e

Marhetng and Sparsarship iunds are rece wed Kom bueawesa 2artners m exchange bor brard afliketeen and expogure B variows
ewamts thrnughoutthe pear. These funda sre racomnlsed B resamue in bhe period Eha pactnaratdp sgneanant relate ta.

Wt grt el OTUTEE i FeweTE
Inderecd revenue |5 recopmised a5 B 2o0naed, uzlng Bl e fective Ineesneat mstbed.

Dviandl rpknls i5 recognlzad whan the dividard is dedard.

A AFnanciz! Instryments

Finan«lal atsits and fmarcial liabfdlibies are recognized when Heznt of Lie Ciby Incarperated becomes a parly 1o the contrachua’
provisians of i finandal insho Tent.

Fimrnclal Assgtc

Heart of the City Incorporated derecognises slinanclsl paust ar, where spplicable, s par of 2 linandial acsee o par ol growg of
sirnilarflnencial st viver il v be ricsio b 5% b Mt Trgams thie petid e Hp'md o gy waainef, or Mg art ol tha: I:I-I.':[
Incorporated hag irangfirmed ig dghts 10 recsing e foas from tee 3556t or hap assamad 3mobl gakicn 1o pay tha received
ash Mhowes i Pl i cleceal irane ial deaw bo o v pea Ly; sk i le

. Huart of U Cibyincorporaac has transhrred seastamtabiy all the rlzks s resrds of the acsety or
| Heart of the Crbyincorporatac has nelthes ransferred mos rekaed bt anilalty il e riaks a0 d rewards of the aceet, Bl
hiaa wanderred coniral of 1he ase=L.

Famanec 3l ancets vaitnln the scope of HFE FEE IPSAS HrFinancisl Invameney Becogeitlen and besdurerment aim clapibisd a4
Firkatielnl sasets o7 Lair whloe Cugugh syrplo or deficil, loans and spcrivaddes, Jeld-to-matmity inwestmets o svailabir-Eorcale
finamcial axsety 1 e classiPcations of tha linancial axsms are determiped atirkmal recognicon

The catagarization datarmings gabsanuen: meapyremant i whslher any faud s oeLne b adarpen:e |5 reogmised in
sl & defitt or inather comprabenuie evenoe and mpends. Haact of bha Ony mearporabed's finantial auteds ank classifled
ar g and regeivabiles &nd ineasks cash and cash qquivalents, Forf-am InvRF MRS Teck|vab e fram ren-gachange
tramsactans, ecwivables hom exchanga trancaction s and imssskiments,

hrid Aepoet Heantod B Chy incoeporanl & R R Pty 17 el e
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Finan<ial Assets Contlnuad

Mifina1nal assete eoet for thcae at [ irvahs throogh surplos ar geficil s wibjeol Lo e view i ipsneesat AT beazl Aeach
reporting dats. Findneal aasets ave inpafeed when e oy abjectihen avidence that 2 firmncial 2k or poop of Rnancial
assabs is impaired Giffwrwnt criseria 1o detarming impainmant are apclied for sach categaryof imanoal ascets, which are
3esoribed helm.

Loret e Rt s,

Lonktid aned revco bl s noncliebua tive i e2ial steors with fved o detamminabde 2aymemnis thak ara nakquctad in a0 ackive
market, Afer inltdal recogrntion. thess are maazured at amort sed cosk valng the effective Interastmethad, less amy alkewance
for imypaerment. Heart of the CHy ncorporateds cash and cash eguarsalents, shori-entr inestmennd | roeivables M
Pt e PR Er At i s, i o s P oot g DB AR IS v rbr Uty irrnk$ EmiinrtS: RNt A by oF
il inctrurinend§,

trmpairmvgnt o Financial Aaseks

Heary of tha Cilly e e b gtibds b At the writ] & &4ch reporting poriad swheth or ther is objodive evidence that a inanoial
axcot ar a proup st financial aseate ik impained. AfRnancis aciat ar grRug pFfinancldl feseis Ik bmpalrad and |mpacimam: 102585
ard inecurrad I knere is obyecthe el e of raparment a5 2 recalu of one of froce &uenle thataccwrred afer the Initlal
recagaition of the aset {6 1055 event'] ang Ual koss van] hes 30 irngad on e cstima e bl cash Rows of e linancsl
a2kl ar thd griug af Find i Rkt THak o bk 3By a2tken ted.

farfnanclal assoets taried 2t amariised cost, Fthare Is abjecthre evikdeanpce that an in-paipmand loge an kbang apd rage vabla
rArhad at apnrkiced onet hac b [remmed , the areark of the loss [s prapsdesd a2 the o[ e n babamer e waget's chrglng
aerianrt aned b praset walue of B eatinonted fobure eashllass diZoounted a6 thie financia a4 ariginal wifective intarest
rle Tha camying amowt ol e Axiet "3 recioed through tha vseof an alkoweance account, The amount of 1ha |oss is moegmised
in the suplus or deficilTor thee rapanng pariod,

Financdal Llabltitles

dean of tve Ciry InCorarateds finandal labaitles inctide rade amd ouiey eredivoes encluding G5T and PErE, soloees
gyt errnts, Srwd d2Feered revenoe].

&1l farain cinl liaklitbes are inigally racognised at Lair vhlue and are measunid sybssquantly 2t amortisad cor wEng the aHmve
irterest mathod groept foc finandial Kabilkies 4 falrvabug through surplus ordeficit

4.5 Cash and Coash Equivalents

Tl aid Cadh edpaivakals ale e Eeriae Nighly |jl.|uil.i inmesd ey W e seaadiby corseribbe ko simensts gf cash apd
which aresubjoct \o aninsignificant risk of chapges inowa|wg.

d.6 Shore Term Invastments

Shaort tarm reestments comprise term depocts shich e & et ol grester shae these montis s 24 than 12 mondhs ard
tharaiere da nod (all Inbe te cotegary of £auh and £25h guit s

4.7 Property, Plant, Equiprment snd Deprediation

i, of progerty, plam ard sguipmeant arg maasered 7t £osh ke dtoumulsued depracianion and /mpakimeen bocsss, Cost
irH. e, e nclibong Eean is dh ety anonibo oA e the aoyusiien of Lie g, e an el o acoirgd Ihicgagha
rpn-eghange ransaction, ifs cast is meppencd atit far valug 25 atthe date of gogruzlHon

aaing 3 Mok s 0N IR OIS A cegnmiidd by Compare g U procme:ds vdth the canning amoink obthe s Galns sed
losees o s posals are reporied nek In the sumdus or defleg.

Thet £t of cay-ta-day sbrviging of propirty, plant, and aquipnient o vacogndsed T s S phe o delicit ae iy oe mearned,

Drapreciation methede, uaeful lhies and rasedosd values are rebewed al each reporiang datesnd are adjusted dihee & 3 changs
i the empepled pattern of consamprlon ol Ue fuurce 2famoe: bensiog ar Sandce patantial @rabodisd i tFe 2559,

jarualdegon st ChyIncorporaced BoD o M o1
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Froparty, Flant, Equipresent and Deprecistdon Continwed

Hmptaghmbbo |2 charged on adirebnkching walue o stialght Ure bades oy thes L ful [Ffe of Ele agascs, Depreciatian i chseged st
shtws cakolated 12 alkoeats the ot or saluaticon of 1w 2zt lss any wsimated rosidual valie over ks remaning waalal life:

Usefut Life Rake Hethad
Cefice Ecuipment - L5 Wabss 1056 - 670 1)
Computer Equlpment q- 13 5'¥ears L - G0 L
Flodrgs & Furniburg 19 20 Tears 1].8% - T1,5% o
Prgaartk|papl & 25004 4= 20 Yy A% - 410 D'EL

3.8 ntangible Assets

nianpible BS3aTs blaulred Separanely ane riemdared o mbal reogniticn ar cost. The cost of irtanpitde 32542 ACqured in &
= ba g bransnctlon vy bheir far vplug 3 the dat l thr wcchacge, Tha costof Intanpibls assabs aoqulomd moo buseness
combanakinn s thoir D i Bk ERe dabe of B oguialdon

Aollowang Inklal recogrbion, intangide a5sats B caniwed ot oot lase apy secumubaied sewrtlsablon sod Aceumulated
‘MpATTE Y ksl a¥oey ALY pe i rar s ars it e, seliading chpabalited deeslnpmann combd, Are mek apithlined ang the
~elbad arpardituee is railechad in Sorpoaet oo elicit m bR peniag imowhech he v penediure 15 incured,

The uspbul livzs of ontangibée assets are p=esped s =ither findte ar dred chnite

“MrAe g f et s waith linfle Liss s ard pragrmided on d diendniybdng vi v Dadis oo thipyc ol qopnomic [ibe angd $23eRad Far
impirmnt whitfvinar helrd i3 30 indication that the intanpible ascet mey kg Impaived  Amortlsation bemng when the amet 5
vallabbe mruse s Ceases G Tha date that the 3556t r: derecogmsed.

The apeariaaismn period Boad b prted [ ploo eeabhad Tar sminkoegibe sooet waith & Ginite Laaful 1 e ryismed agbeaar ke
sl ol 2ach rapenting peadad_ Charges in ghe expecied ohd B or the suypectad oatern ol condumption of Dt &Canornic
emaits. or service potentia] emibediod in the aaset sra comidened 1 modify the amorbisation pariod or mattved, a5 appropriate,
and pre Ireatad as changes n acoountng eshimates.

The prmarbispblon ¢apanzq gndrian g ke o aadts vatth funibg leags ks racapnizadin Soiphs 0 dafich ag ih axpancs catepnry tMaL g
2o 2|2beel i dbs fureblea o b ol spplid e seesks

The smorbablon pernods “or Hesnt of Bhe Clky indor podated aniats ss s folbens:

el Lifg Rty Method
wWebsltes A 'fears At o'r
Tt szl K5 Ir ghelbnile L

#.9 Leasas

Paynants om cparang lase 2 graemants, whare the [essoc ratans subatanbially the sk and rewards of owmarship of an asset,
208 TeCKENISed 26 an axXpensa on 3 smalghdAine basis over He L ke kerm,

4.1[F Erciphorad Barwalits

Wagan, yolorian, aed canaol Bave

WiabAitles forwages and salarlés, and anpyal Kaea w5 racognived n Jplus ordaficit daring tea period Inwhich the emploee
pront|obed the related cerelcas, Ubalnlites Tor the: assoc ated benad 1 b msstaded ot 1he edrdants sapacled bo be pald whean e
lienbnillliest are gedfled.

Emiplenti bitesfils kg bed b E@ 2ettliA athin tailve rrearrths aFbér thee end of thea pariodin which e emiployes rinders Ha
redatoyl condce ara rueasined hased on acored enhilemends ar o et takes of poy,

Al logeat  Himi o3 Oy insapeaae 0 N EHETE FRDE LA 1Y
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4.11 IncOmE Tax

Lot B iP% SPAALE 2k A bnear pacobed Soviety ardd ooy sketion CHRAIE] o the Incame Fax o 2007, Hearr of b Coor
I anporaed b i e T e T

4.1} Soads and Sericea Ta (G5T)

Raverives gapenses and aEsets ane mecopidsed suluskee ol G5 except iof recevatles and pepables, vahic b aie stated with e
arwainl of 3T included,

THl reiet artiaivt &7 GET ratowera 3l d ten, or panrable o, the nland Besans Bepartment i included 35 part of mopivabes o
peayaes I the statam ert of Tnan il posten.

Cagh llpw = 2rg inciyded [0 the st meint af Gash “Icwe am 2 nat basks and the GET compensatof cosh flows arizing fram

W LR ] inemw g actlvsbee, which s reciverabils D, Gr paywabdbe o, Bie e Pevemee Depob e dasified espa),
ol cperating cash Hows

4,13 Equity

Equity s Lhe mermiars” [niErest [nHeart of tha Gty Incorposated, measured B e d Hevenis bebween botad 253649 and batal
HakImties Equity b made up of the Tollewirg companenta:

Actuminlaced NI R AN BRI P B N s

Aecu il ated camp e ey e e s arid espeee g Heare al ihe Cley Ireorprarsted s aseummdated durpduc or dedici finees ik
farmat on.

5. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

Iha prepzraten of Heerk of the Ciky Incorporatead's fnanciat stabements requires mamagement b mase |udzement s, esmates
ANC &Esuriphicns tat alifecy tee repomed riuns oF revenDes, ez penses, 2a5eks il (abillzien, and U accomparning
datature, and the Gackesurs of Sontingent fiabilfties. Uncerminty abowt hase axsmptions and astimatas cauld rasultap
nukcrmas Hnak require & matenal fd]ustmeent by 1lhe CAMYR RS wf macets ae lan] b Afferbed on fytowe porimda.

Judpements

Iyt prioaesd of Bpplying Heaet f (he iy Incaporabed's soepuntiong palicies, ansgeriet b made e follping
prdgenents, which hiwr the mwist S5gndicant effect on the amewnis recognised inths consalidated finanzial statememis:

Operating ease Commitments

Haark of the Sioy Incrparatd b e 1aned o a numbar ol leass oTHmWtmants.

Yeari cf the Lty Incorporated has detenmined, based on an evaluston ol the renms and conditors of e acargamenls, 3uch s
Eive B bermn ot consiullng a subslantial portion of B scotmic [ilnod b aoses, Ihat it deas rio eegaln alkche sgnHlcant
rigkt dnd Phwikrdd of ewWnuship of Hbe propeeriles and 2c0aunts for the Contracts 25 operating kiases.

Eakimakes antd AgsymyH ons

THE ke ks AP IS Gin1cann g thi fulere aod oller Key s e ol eslvnagianm uie riam 4 dee vepoaing dute, thet havs a
sigrificand rigk ol cawging & materisl >fustment 15 the carmying anpunpts of aceets and babdries waihon g nget fingnogl yaar,
arg descrbed balow. Heart of the ity Incorperated baped e sssunptlans and asteiphed 44 parBaEbEre Ty alLaE] e he
conso b bed Tanclal dabemen s wers pregared. Exat ng eeurmsbances §nd asnamprions a0k lnnes o des |op e,
hgwranar, ma chan gl due to macke changqs oranumstances arsing beyond the conir ol of Hea of the City

Incorparated, Such changes ang seflected i1 the assumptlons whan they ocower.
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HEART OF THE CITY
Annual General Meeting
Goodman Fielder Room
Aotea Centre

Auckland CBD
26" October 2017

Minutes

The Chairman Martin Snedden declared the meeting open at 6.03pm
Apologies
Apologies were received from Greg Moyle.

That the apologies be received.

Moved: Jason Copus
Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush
CARRIED

Confirmation of Minutes from 2016 Annual General Meeting (AGM)

That the minutes of the AGM held on 25" October 2016 be approved.
Moved: Paddy Stafford-Bush

Seconded: Andrew Stringer
CARRIED

Chair’s Report
The Chair’s Report was presented by Martin Snedden.

Treasurer’s Report

Viv Beck spoke to the meeting regarding the Financial Statements for the year
ending 30 June 2017.

That the Annual Financial Statements for 2016/17 be approved
Moved: Andrew Stringer

Seconded: Jason Copus
CARRIED



That the overall level of funding from the 2018/19 Heart of the City BID targeted
rate be increased by 5% from 2017/2018 rate.

This funding increase will provide for a one-off contribution of $100,000 to the
City Mission’s upgrade project, which will provide housing for city centre rough
sleepers. This demonstrates Heart of the City’'s commitment to ensuring
homelessness is ended in the city centre.

Moved: Jason Copus
Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush
CARRIED

Appointment of Auditor

That the Executive Committee is directed to reappoint RSM Hayes Audit to
conduct the audit on the 2017/18 accounts.

Moved: Jason Copus
Seconded: Andrew Stringer
CARRIED

Retiring Executive Committee Members

As contained in Rule 14.5 of our Constitution, the following Board Members will
remain on Heart of the City Executive Committee as their third anniversary date
has not yet been reached:

Martin Snedden

Jason Copus

e Greg Moyle

Sarah Hull

At each Annual General Meeting at least 3 of the Executive Committee members
shall retire from office, but shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Resignations were received from the following Executive Committee members:
e  Chris Cherry

e Andrew Stringer

e Shane McMahon

e Regan Hall

e Paddy Stafford-Bush

Election/confirmation of Executive Members

Nominations were received from:
e Regan Hall

e Paddy Stafford-Bush

e Murray Crane

e Celia Hay

That Regan Hall, Paddy Stafford-Bush, Murray Crane and Celia Hay be declared
elected to the Executive Committee for a three-year term ending at the 2020
AGM.



10.

11.

Moved: Jason Copus
Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush
CARRIED

Outgoing Members — Chris Cherry, Andrew Stringer and Shane McMahon were
thanked for their contribution to Heart of the City over many years.

Chief Executive’s Report

Viv Beck gave an overview of Heart of the City’s key areas of focus and
achievements over the last year and a summary of the 2017/18 Annual Plan.

Martin Snedden opened the floor for general business

There was general discussion regarding:

e Cleanliness of the City Centre

e Accessibility and loading particularly in the vicinity of High Street and the
Customs Street West/Viaduct area.

e The importance of residents in the CBD

Meeting was declared closed at 7.01pm
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIR

Auckland’s central city has embarked on a major period of change which will
transform the environment for business and the growing number of people living,
visiting and working in the city.

Amidst these changes, Heart of the City is playing an active role with an ambitious
plan for the future. Our Chief Executive has worked with our team to raise the
voice of business amongst agencies delivering major projects and ensure our
members are top of mind in our work to retain vibrant perceptions and motivations
to visit the city.

There have been a number of external changes this year which impact our operating
and legislative landscape. Our team has manoeuvred through these changes
professionally, including the implementation of new health and safety legislation.

Standing down from my role, I'm very pleased that the Executive Committee is in
great shape, with broad sector experience and passion for Heart of the City. I'd like
to thank both the team and my fellow board members for their contribution and
wish them well with the interesting challenges ahead. Contributing to the city is
rewarding and the potential for Heart of the City to play a valuable role through a
time of transformation is exciting.

TERRY GOULD
CHAIR
OWNER, PHILLIMORE PROPERTIES

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This is both an inspiring and challenging time for Heart of the City. On the one
hand, investment in the city centre is a sign of confidence which will lead to a
much improved city in five years’ time. On the other hand, construction creates

challenges for business, particularly those in close proximity.

This year we have built on our successful destination marketing and events
programme, linking it more strongly with our business members so they have new
opportunities to be involved. Fashion in the City and Restaurant Month were

key highlights and our winter Lovebites campaign has further showcased the city
centre’s urban appeal.

We have also advocated for business on a range of issues that concern them,
including the upgrade of Freyberg Place; the impact of construction associated with
the City Rail Link; begging, homelessness and safety in the city centre.

The city centre contributes significantly to Auckland’s economic output and our
goal is to ensure the cumulative impact of change is positive overall as it reshapes.
We will continue to support business and promote the city as vibrant and exciting,

working with others to build momentum and excitement as the city transforms.

VIV BECK

CHIEF EXECUTIVE




HEART OF THE CITY TEAM

VIV BECK
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

RAEWYN BRAJKOVICH
EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT
TO CEO/OFFICE MANAGER

KATE CLEAVER
MARKETING MANAGER

EMMA JONES

BRAND MANAGER

BILLIE DREW
DIGITAL SPECIALIST

RIAH VATHER
MARKETING EXECUTIVE

JANE STEWART
EVENTS AND SPONSORSHIP MANAGER

ERIN TAYLOR/
SONYA GANDRAS
EVENTS AND SPONSORSHIP EXECUTIVE

TANIA LOVERIDGE /
FIONA JOHNSTON
ADVOCACY AND ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

LOUELLA REID
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TERRY GOULD
CHAIR
OWNER, PHILLIMORE PROPERTIES

JASON COPUS
DEPUTY CHAIR AND TREASURER
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER,

SMITH & CAUGHEY’S

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

. e
SHALE CHAMBERS

CHAIR, WAITEMATA LOCAL
BOARD

MARTIN SNEDDEN
INDEPENDENT APPOINTMENT

CHAIR (SEPT 2016)
CEO, DUCO EVENTS

CHRIS CHERRY
OWNER, WORKSHOP DENIM
AND HELEN CHERRY

REGAN HALL
DIRECTOR, BTL

% s

e
=
=

SARAH HULL
MARKETING DIRECTOR,
COOPER AND COMPANY

SHANE MCMAHON
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER,
NZ BUS

PADDY
STAFFORD-BUSH
PROPERTY OWNER,

DILWORTH BUILDING
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NATIONAL DIRECTOR, CBRE




HEART OF THE CITY IS THE BUSINESS
ASSOCIATION FOR AUCKLAND’S CITY CENTRE,
AN AREA OF VITAL ECONOMIC IMPORTANCE
TO THE REGION AND ONE THAT IS
DEVELOPING AT AN UNPRECEDENTED RATE.

AT THE HEART OF IT: OUR MEMBERS

Our members are property owners, business owners, occupants and tenants of

commercially rated property that sit within our defined boundary.

As we look forward to a transformed and revitalised city, it is crucial that we remain attuned
to the needs of existing businesses in this time of flux. To this end, we continue laying the
foundations to enhance engagement with our members and ensure that we are effectively

capturing and sharing their voices.

We conducted a membership survey to gain greater clarity on how members wish to be
engaged and to affirm our priorities. We completed a major update of our membership
database to ensure that our communications are reaching them. We sought the views

of businesses on the City Rail Link construction and the impacts of simultaneous
developments, especially around Victoria Street. We also created opportunities for
members to learn about transport developments planned for the city and participate in two
Mayoral Debates that we co-hosted with the EMA. The aim was to ensure business needs

were clearly on the agenda from the start of the campaign.

As the city evolves, so does our approach in reaching out to business. We will continue to

develop new ways to engage and involve our members with our work for the city centre.

BRITOMART

Britomart is a prime example of
contemporary design and placemaking
echoing throughout the historic elements
of the precinct from its bustling transport
hub, sharp fashion edge, and glamorous

dining and nightlife offering.

QUEEN STREET

The golden mile of the city centre
combines commerce with high-end
international luxury, the iconic Smith

& Caughey’s department store and

much-loved main street chain stores for

a diverse shopping experience.

FEDERAL & ELLIOTT
STREET PRECINCT

This vibrant destination offers ever-
changing entertainment, an enticing
selection of award-winning restaurants,
a world-class casino and a dazzling array
of cultural and visual delights.

OUR PRECINCTS

ARTS PRECINCT

The Arts Precinct is home to the city’s
arts and culture scene with world-class
venues that attract international and

local acts, exhibitions, productions, and

diverse community events.

HIGH STREET DISTRICT

Auckland’s original fashion enclave is a
gateway to a myriad of laneways that lead to
some of the city’s best local fashion names,
beautiful heritage buildings, and small cafes
and bistros that draw large followings.

WATERFRONT

From Wynyard Quarter and Silo Park, to the
Viaduct Harbour and Princes Wharf, this area

offers stunning views and a mix of experiences

from harbourside dining to jetboating,
wandering with the family, to open air cinema

and Auckland’s Fish Markets.



OUR BRAND COMES IN ASPECTRUM
OF COLOURS TO REFLECT THE
BREADTH OF EXPERIENCES AND
AMBIENCE OF THE VARIOUS
ENVIRONMENTS IN THE CITY CENTRE.

FOUNDATIONS SET FOR GROWTH

Since Heart of the City was formed, our role as the city centre’s business

association has had a two-fold nature. On the one hand, we advocate on
behalf of businesses on key issues that impact the economic success of the

' city. On the other, we drive visitation and spending by promoting the city as
- | thevibrant, diverse and exciting destination it is.

Recognised internally as the ‘member-facing’ and ‘consumer-facing’

functions, and well aware of their inextricable link, we have started to
bring these strands closer together this year to create better leverage
opportunities for members and the city centre.

To reflect this holistic approach, we launched a new brand identity to replace
the two legacy logos that had been used separately. Our revitalised brand
unifies our two components with a single look and feel and provides a future
facing identity. It encapsulates the evolution of Heart of the City and
positions us to support the changing city in a co-ordinated and inspiring way.




RAISING THE VOICE OF BUSINESS




HEART OF THE CITY REPRESENTS BUSINESS
INTERESTS IN AUCKLAND’S CITY CENTRE AND
PLAYS AN ACTIVE ROLE IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF
THE CITY CENTRE AS A VIBRANT AND ACCESSIBLE
PLACE TO DO BUSINESS.

ADVOCACY & ENGAGEMENT

We are also a member of the Auckland City Centre
Advisory Board, which advises Council on the allocation of
City Centre Targeted Rate funding to projects designed to
improve our public spaces.

Late last year we asked businesses what they are most
concerned about for attention in the city centre. The

key issues included: access in, out and around the CBD;
mitigation of the impact of construction; begging and
anti-social behaviour on city streets; safety; and city
centre operations such as rubbish and cleaning. This report
includes an update on our work in these areas.

FREYBERG PLACE

The business community is fundamental to the success
of the High Street District and we lobbied to achieve
results on key areas of concern with Council’s proposed
designs for refurbishing the square. These included the
retention of shared access for vehicles, particularly in the
absence of a wider plan for the district to ensure decisions
are not made in isolation; and mitigating the impact of
construction. After several public meetings and follow up
with Council, results were achieved on both counts on
behalf of businesses in the district. Construction is now
underway on both the square and refurbishment of the

Ellen Melville Centre, and is due for completion in May 2017.

CITY RAIL LINK

The City Rail Link will reap significant benefits for the city
centre over time. However, we were concerned about the
impact of early stage works, particularly on businesses

in close proximity to construction. We raised issues with
Auckland Transport and action was taken, for example
improved hoardings and lighting in Victoria Street. We
have sought to be involved earlier in these discussions

so proactive mitigation can be agreed and the impact of
construction reduced as this project progresses.

Targeted rate Funding has been set aside to contribute
to public realm works associated with both Albert Street
($20m) and Lower Queen Street ($10m).

HOMELESSNESS

We actively sought solutions to end homelessness on city
streets and are pleased that social service providers have
come together to support a sustainable solution that has

been successful internationally — Housing First.

Action is also underway to improve emergency

accommodation, with $2m of city centre targeted rate

funding committed to enhance emergency housing at
James Liston Hostel. The aim is to transition about 240
people into permanent housing over the next two years
through the hostel’s Housing First model. We are delighted
to see a sustainable solution in place and a collaborative

approach to end homelessness in the foreseeable future.



COUNCIL'S ANNUAL PLAN

We joined with the EMA and Property Council to

oppose a proposal to change the Interim Transport

Levy which we believed would unfairly shift cost to
business one year into a three-year programme, in

some cases by tens of thousands of dollars.

The result of the Annual Plan deliberations was that
Council retained the status quo for the remaining

two years.

ADVOCACY & ENGAGEMENT

BEGGING

We presented to Council’s Regulatory and By-
Laws Committee, urging Councillors to support an
expeditious review of the by-law and for Council to
take a more holistic approach to resolve and not just

manage this complex issue.

We need solutions for people in genuine need as well
as businesses affected by these issues in order to
address negative perceptions and ensure locals and
visitors can enjoy our city streets. This remains

a priority for action.

UNITARY PLAN

Heart of the City has been an active participant in
the debate since the draft Unitary Plan was released
in 2012.

We appreciate that Auckland needs a platform for

growth but we raised residual concerns about the

importance of design quality and heritage protection
in the city centre; as well as protecting against

further reclamation in the harbour.

SUBMISSIONS MADE

Auckland Council Annual Plan -

Interim Transport Levy

VOICED SUPPORT FOR

St James Theatre restoration

A stadium close to the city centre

MEDIA

We continued to be active in the media

this year across a wide variety of topics,

Electricity Authority - Consultation
Paper on Transmission Pricing

Methodology

City Rail Link — Aotea Station
Construction and Link to North
Auckland Line

Renaming lower Khartoum Place

Developing Aotea Arts Precinct
Stronger police presence on city streets

Parking changes designed to increase
the availability of on-street parking
during the day

from growth in the city centre, to

begging and anti-social behaviour;

safety; transport and parking.

SKYPATH

Heart of the City has supported the SkyPath project
through the Resource Consent process and this

year we reconfirmed our support for its construction
and operation. It will open up cycling and walking
access between the North Shore and Auckland’s city
centre, bringing with it increased access to central

city business. |t will also create an iconic destination,

which we believe will bring economic benefit to the

region and provide a reason for visitors to stay longer

in Auckland.

mitigating the impact of construction;
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PROMOTING THE HEART OF THE CITY



eV

POST WINTER CAMPAIGN 2016

We've built on the momentum of our strategy and evolved our campaigns to resonate

o | L X
DESTINATION MARKETING AND EVENTS -l BRAND METRICS

with our audience and inspire people to visit and spend in the city centre. This year, we

developed and launched the new Lovebites of the city platform, which has proven very

successful and received a fantastic response since its roll out over winter.

Partnerships were strengthened with key agencies, sponsors and businesses to amplify : = i [ Inere e UNPROMPTED RECALL %
our impact in market and create compelling content that lifts awareness, perceptions and : : 3 = i * OF HEART OF THE CITY 3 2
motivations for the city. While the key brand metrics (right) remained stable year on year, - 5. k2 1 : : PROMOTIONS SEPT 2016

we saw tangible benefits through increased visitation (pedestrian counts were up +10%)

and spending in the heart of the city (up +14% amongst featured businesses).

(-]
PROMPTED 76/o
AWARENESS OF
HEART OF THE CITY SEPT 2016
PERCEPTION OF THE 85%
CITY AS ‘ASPIRATIONAL,
CULTURED & VIBRANT SEPT 2016
MOTIVATION TO VISIT 74%
THE CITY AS A RESULT OF

THESE PROMOTIONS SEPT 2016




AN ENGAGED DIGITAL FOLLOWING

Response to Heart of the City’s digital channels has grown
from strength to strength again this year. Our website has
had 2.2m user sessions in the last 12 months, of which 1.3m

were unique visitors.

WEBSITE

TOTAL VISITS

2.2m

OCT 2015 - SEPT 2016
VS 1.6m OCT 2014 - SEPT 2015

UNIQUE VISITOR SESSIONS

1.3m +29*

OCT 2015 - SEPT 2016
VS 1m OCT 2014 - SEPT 2015

PAGE VIEWS

4.4m

OCT 2015 - SEPT 2016
VS 3.7m OCT 2014 - SEPT 2015

Google Analytics

One of our key strengths has been our engaged digital
audience across a number of channels. Strong engagement
is a key indicator of relevant and inspiring content and a
compelling city offering.

FACEBOOK

Although Facebook continues to make changes to their
algorithm, making it more challenging for branded content to
be seen and instead prioritising content from family and friends
- we have a loyal, sizable audience, who continue to engage

and respond to our content and campaigns.

TOTAL FANS 145k
SEPT 2016

TOTALANNUAL ENGAGEMENT* 772k
OCT 2015 - SEPT 2016

PEOPLE TALKING ABOUT US* 262k
(COMMENTS, LIKES, SHARES)
OCT 2015 - SEPT 2016

*Fuse Reporting

WHERE NEXT®

Downloads and usage of our WHERE NEXT® app exceeded
expectations. This clever city guide encourages people to stay
longer, do more and springboards ideas for their next visit. The
next enhancement is to roll out our alerts feature to further

increase regular use and perFormance.

TOTAL DOWNLOADS 51k
SESSIONS PER DAY 2.7k
MONTHLY SESSIONS 78k
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THE ARTWEEK AUCKLAND EVENT ALLOWS US
TO PROFILE THE CITY AS A KEY DESTINATION

ARTWEEK 2015

FOR ARTS AND CULTURE.

We sponsor this popular Auckland art event in addition to delivering our own activations for

the city centre to increase the offering. It also strengthens the perception of the city as a

cosmopolitan destination and adds to its liveability appeal.

Anecdotal feedback and attendance at the event indicates that excitement and demand for

such events is on the rise. The goal is to build a bigger and better Artweek year on year to

position the city’s arts offering, grow art tourism and enhance community cohesion.

60k

WEBSITE VISITS TO
ARTWEEK PAGES

41% OF TOTAL WEB TRAFFIC

UNLOCKED
COLLECTIONS

A free guided tour through
some of the city’s finest
corporate and institutional
collections. Places were

booked out within a few days

of promotion.

WALKS OF ART

Free walking tours
showcasing outdoor arts and
urban spaces including three

HeARTs of the City murals

we had commissioned.

LATE NIGHT ART

The festival centrepiece
was a one-night event that
simultaneously activated
sites from the Waterfront
to Britomart and up to
Aotea Square.

CHRISTMAS IS THE SINGLE BIGGEST
OPPORTUNITY DURING THE YEAR
TO INCREASE CONSUMER SPENDING.

CHRISTMAS 2015

Our objective is to drive gift shopping, visiting for Christmas events and attractions
and dining for celebrations. The campaign ran for five weeks across street posters,
online and radio.

The campaign performed well, with total spend in the heart of the city increasing by
13.3% over the five-week Christmas period. Christmas Eve and Boxing Day also fared
exceptionally well, up 13.5% and 18.4% respectively on the prior year.

13

SPEND IN CITY CENTRE
OR $27Mt

+4%
SPEND IN
COMPETITOR AREAS'

+78%

WEB VISITS
DURING
CAMPAIGN PERIOD

RESULTS COMPARED TO SAME PERIOD LAST YEAR

T Metrics results from Marketview Consumer Spend Report
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. WE SPONSORED BRITOMART FASHION SESSIONS,

PROMOTED 100+ RETAIL OFFERS AND SUPPORTED
THE DELIVERY OF MORE THAN 20 FASHION EVENTS
ACROSS 10 DAYS.

FASHION IN THE CITY 2016

Fashion in the City made a comeback with appropriate style and excitement in February-March
2016. We harnessed the scope of media partnerships and the diversity of fashion retailers in the

city to create our biggest fashion activation in Auckland.

We also raised New Zealand’s longest catwalk on Queen Street for the second time. The 125m
long catwalk closed off Auckland’s major commercial thoroughfare to traffic and drew an estimated
4,000 people. The runway showcased 40 models and over 70 of the season’s hottest

runway looks.

The event delivered an estimated $709,000 in PR media value mainly from TV One’s Breakfast,

Stuff live streaming and FQ.co.nz, in addition to the editorial coverage by media partner Viva.

Spending at participating retailers from Auckland cardholders increased by 28% compared to 2015

(when we had no media investment and saw a decrease in spending from Aucklanders of 14%).

+28% +57% +49, +20% +58%

PARTICIPANTS’ TOTAL HEART SPEND IN PEDESTRIAN WEB VISITS -

SPEND ACROSS OF THE CITY COMPETITOR COUNTS ON 487% OF TOTAL

THE 10-DAY SPENDt AREAS? QUEEN STREET | WEB TRAFFIC

EVENT! TO FASHION
PAGES

RESULTS COMPARED TO SAME PERIOD LAST YEAR

 Metrics results from Marketview Consumer Spend Report

;

A
»

THESE COVETABLE VIRGIN MARY SALT SPOONS
ARE CUSTOM MADE BY A NEW ZEALAND DESIGNER
ESPECIALLY FOR BADUZZI. WANT ONE FOR YOUR
TABLE AT HOME? YOU CAN BUY THEM AT THE BAR

TO TAKE AWAY.

WINTER CAMPAIGN: LOVEBITES 2016

The Lovebites campaign was developed to create a sense of intrigue and discovery about the

city. We approached restaurants, retailers, institutions, venues and collected ‘bite-sized’ quirks

about their business that were otherwise hidden.

50 Lovebites formed the spine of the campaign, from which a heavily integrated marketing

approach was built. The editorial partnership with NZME was a critical component in extending

the campaign’s reach. The campaign’s appeal was enhanced with 15-20 second videos of each

Lovebite, which were released via social media, digital and cinema, with print developed for

outdoor and press. We also ran some targeted activity to reach CBD workers and residents via

Link buses (42 buses) and Tower TV which screens in the atriums of inner city tower blocks.

This campaign endeared Aucklanders to their city and enticed them into unravelling its

mysteries, supporting businesses during the conventionally slow winter season.

14+, +49, +10%

PARTICIPANTS’ VS SPEND IN PEDESTRIAN
SPEND DURING COMPETITOR COUNTS
WINTERt AREAS?

RESULTS COMPARED TO SAME PERIOD LAST YEAR

 Metrics results from Marketview Consumer Spend Report

+25% | 685k

WEB VISITS LOVEBITES
DURING VIDEO VIEWS
WINTER
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THE CENTRAL CITY IS A VIBRANT VISITOR
DESTINATION WITH A FULL LINE UP OF FESTIVALS,
PERFORMANCE, EVENTS AND ATTRACTIONS.

DINING REMAINS THE TOP REASON FOR
AUCKLANDERS TO VISIT THE CITY CENTRE.

EVENT SPONSORSHIP

We continued to support city-based events through sponsorship and assistance. We focused

RESTAURANT MONTH 2016: EAT ODD

Restaurant Month leverages this traditionally strong sector during the quieter winter

period and we continued to leverage the successive support from ATEED, Viva and on developing and supporting events that were unique to the central city and reflected

American Express the urban, edgy, innovative and sophisticated style that pervades the inner city. Events

sponsorship allowed us to add another element of discovery, interest, and vibrancy to our

Awareness of Restaurant Month is now solid with 72%* of Aucklanders having heard of . key marketing pillars. More importantly, these enabled businesses to leverage off a healthy

the event. The campaign objective was therefore to get more people to book and dine calendar of events throughout the year.

during August. Last year, it was the unusual, quirky events that sold out first and received

RESULTS COMPARED TO SAME PERIOD LAST YEAR

*Sept 2016 Nielsen, Aucklanders (Base 1,267)

 Metrics results from Marketview Consumer Spend Report

PR pick up. This insight helped shape the “Eat Odd” theme supported by interesting, less TIMELINE
expected food photography. Many of the events sold out, with just a couple having tickets
-8 available right up until the night. NOVEMBER 2015 O SANTA PARADE -The parade signals the start of the festive
v a season & attracts over 250,000 people to the city
: centre every year.
PARTICIPATING PARTICIPANTS TOTALHOTC VS SPEND IN
RESTAURANTS i PENDT COMPETITOR
SPEND SPEN AREAS MARCH 2016 () THE AUCKLAND ARTS FESTIVAL
101 +6% +8% 3.6
DURING THE DURING THE +3.0% 24 APRIL-17 MAY 2016 (O THE INTERNATIONAL COMEDY FESTIVAL
WEB VISITS EVENT(1-31AUG) | EVENT(-31AUG) | DURINGTHE
+21o/ EVENT (1-31 AUG)
° +11% +11 10-15 MAY 2016 (O THE INTERNATIONAL WRITERS FESTIVAL
PR MEDIA DURING THE DURING THE
VALUE CAMPAIGN CAMPAIGN 20-21 MAY 2016 O WINETOPIA
$1 5M (1JULY-31AUG) (1JULY-31AUG)
14-31JULY 2016 (O THE INTERNATIONAL FILM FESTIVAL
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“THE CITY CENTRE IS THE HUB OF AUCKLAND’S
ECONOMY WITH 1IN 16 EMPLOYEES WORKING HERE
AND UP TO 16,000 EMPLOYEES PER SQUARE KM.”

— AUCKLAND TRANSPORT WEBSITE

AUCKLAND’S CITY CENTRE PERCEPTIONS OF THE CITY CENTRE
(Where agreement equals a rating of 6 - 10)

66"/° agreed that Auckland’s city centre 580/° agreed it is a place they like to visit 620/° agreed that the city centre feels

. . . . is exciting and vibrant on the weekends safe to them generally
11,116 cITy ceNTRE 1% i 2% i 7% i 4%

! EDUCATION ! HEALTH CARE : ACCOMMODATION ! WHOLESALE TRADE
BUSINESSES ; &FOOD 64°/° agreed that the city centre is a 680/ agreed that the city centre is the 700/ agreed that the city centre is easy
2014 Statistics New Zealand L mo - mo place they are proud of ° place they like to go for dining and % get to
Business Demographics P 2% 7% 2% eating out

' ' : MANUFACTURING ' H OTHER ' . MEDIA

: . ; : ; | & COMMS
4,111 COMMERCIALLY L 2% 5 2% ™,

’ : oo COI:STRUCTION : P ARTO& City Centre Perceptions Study — June 2016 Buzz Channel
RATED PROPERTIES i i RECREATION
Auckland Council ; ; P i : P
i 7%
. RETAIL

91,854 WORKERS s
2014 Statistics New Zealand
Business Demographics
26,307 RESIDENTS DOING BUSINESS IN THE CITY CENTRE
2013 Census '
60,000 STUDENTS TOTAL HEART OF THE CITY SPEND PRIME OFFICE VACANCY PEDESTRIAN COUNTS

2012 Statistics New Zealand +1 o°/° 1 .90/0 +1 2°/°

TOTAL HEART OF THE CITY CBD RETAIL VACANCY
TRANSACTIONS (-]
2.7%

+12%

: ° °

. 43% 23%

: PROFESSIONAL, FINANCE & : RENTAL &

1 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 1 REAL-ESTATE SERVICES

2014 Statistics New Zealand Business Demographics




PEDESTRIAN ACTIVITY IS ONE OF THE INDICATORS
OF A CITY’S APPEAL AND ACCESSIBILITY.

WATERFRONT

Ak
&

ATOOL FOR BUSINESS

31

We provide 19 pedestrian counters at key locations to measure the city centre’s visitation
performance. The system operates 24/7, is a privacy-protecting people counter and the data
is readily available from our interactive website. It allows businesses and agencies to compare

current and long-term trends in the city centre.

We use pedestrian counts to evaluate the success of our campaigns. The results are reviewed
alongside other research insights, including spending information from Marketview to provide

an overview of the ‘health and vitality’ of the city and its businesses.

Pedestrian footfall is also used to assess the impact of land and infrastructure development to
business operations. We will continue to provide and use the system to shape our marketing

and advocacy activities.

OVERALL COUNTS

OCT 2015-SEPT 2016

AA——

CITYWATCH IS A SECURITY PROGRAMME WE
CO-FUND TO ENSURE THE ENFORCEMENT OF
AUCKLAND’S PUBLIC NUISANCE AND SAFETY
BYLAW IN THE CITY CENTRE.

CITYWATCH

Our support boosts the operational hours of the programme from 192 hours to

314 hours weekly in the summer.

The timing of additional enforcement strategically interplays with the influx of
visitors from the cruise ship season, school holidays, and the myriad of events that
occur simultaneously throughout the city. A stronger CityWatch presence means

more call-outs are attended to during more hours of the day.

We will continue to invest in the city’s safety to further improve the overall

experience of visitors, workers, residents and the perception of the city centre.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Heart of the City Incorporated

We hava audited the spacial purposa financial stetements of Heart of the City Incorporated on pages 5 to 13
which comprise the siaterment of inancial position as at 30 Jurne 20186, and the ststement of financal
performance, stalemant of movarments in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of slgnificant
accounting policies and other explanatory informalion, The special purposa financial siatemenis have been
prepared by the board in accordance wilh accounting policies outlined in the statement of accounting policias.

This report is made solely to the mambers as a body, in accordance with the Rules of Heart of the Cily
Incorporated. Our audit has been undertaken so thal we might state 10 the members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. Ta the fullast extant pemmitted by law,
we ¢o not accept of assume rasponsibllity to anyone other than the board and the members as a body, for our
work, for this repor, or for the opinions we have formead.

Boards’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The board is responsile for the preparation of these specal purpose financial statements in accordance with
ihe stated accounting policies and lor such interma control 28 the boand determine is necessary to enable the
preparalion of =pecial purpose finencisl statements thal are free from material misstalemant, whether dueto
fraud or error. The board is responsible for determining that the stated accounting policies are appropriate in
the circumstances for which these special purpose financial starements are prepaned.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to expross an opinion on these special purpose financial statements based on cur audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemations Standards on Auditing (MNew Zealand). Those
standards require that wa comply with ethical requirements and plan and pedonm the audit to obtain reasonable
aseurance about whether the financial statements are fres fram material misslatemant.

An audit involves parforming proceduras fo obtain audit evidence aboul the smounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the audior's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of materia misstatemnent of the financial statements, whather due to fraud or errar, In making those rigk
assessments, the auditor considears internal contral relevant 1© the enilly's preparation and Tair presentation of
the financial statements In order [o design audit procedures that ara appropriate in the crcumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opindon on the effectiveness of the enlily's intermal control, An audit also
includes evalualing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, as well as evaluating the overall pressrdation of the finandal staterments.

We believe thal the audi evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to arovide a basls for our
audit opinion,

Uther than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, Heart of the City Incorporated,

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD
ALDIT | TAX | CONSULTING
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Opinion

I our opinion, the special perpose financial stalements of Hear of the City Incorporated for the year anded 30
June 2016 on pages 3 0 13 have been prepared, in all materal respecis, in accordance with the stated
accounting palices.

Basis of Accounting

Withoul modifying our opinion, we draw atiention 1 Nole 1 1o the spedial purpose lnancial slatements which
describes the basis of accounting, The special purpose financial statements are prepared sclely for the
mambers of Hearl of he Gity Incorporated, As & resull, the special purpose financial statements may not be
suitable for another purposs.

RSm
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Starement of fitancial performance
for the year ended 38 June 2016
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Statement of financial performance
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Mpls Thie toar Lol Yaar
Eaeioribn
ACL Lewy T.56] “hA53
Accaunianey Foes 0T Iy
Advecacy ELAC ) 239,15
AGK E:[}uu'.e: 1,450 1,414
Amnctemien of Entunpfids Aaier: B6042 1L 3584
Andir Fpes = Gonet Thounmtme Bew Firbned Auchr - LEY i
Aulin Fups — KM L oycs Aundit 14,455 LS00
Bad Dhutws Waiiep CHF 754 -
[Farik Proa awl Invcpen 4 EA20
Corpmutee Exprass [m [ ]
Crmopsae ey o i Az,571 0TS
Cxirpareeviztive I Pt Ot il
Frhucniicasd Soininnct a3, ms -
Ewenlx, Sparoarshee d; Adbrertsng, 10 2453151k LAH (A2
Foaings Aceoaunitg sl Lepal Brpenses 12 G A6 Aal
Tiotyivese of Lean 4420 4,400
Creneoal Eopamees 13,240 RS
DareCni PO 4! N A% v | )
Luyml Fe *Lan 11,408
Lo ol Sak: ol Fiend Adweid rl,‘."}? RUIR 'Y
Lo Wulume sl Tk .
fowlierdrpe sl nim s b TOalll M X2
oo Scpyice: 21 NG5 2 i
Pocloisg (BoifRl T 4 835
Fowrer |, 387 & 0%
Priming, Pastape & Sadoneoy 14,240 L1
Poicar Ponios] A 230 Wiy B (0,4 |8, AHE
PRecudnucon Esproins 3 oh H M3
Rl & QIEX 110 201 104,162
Furaorund Zxpensc N1 260,000 1200720
gy o523 U )
"I.':l-l:plml'b:."lnl.tmcl 14,47 13,254
ichsive anageusc e RAE IR 40
Whors Bose App Opecwsoonl Bspeoss 158,441 122350
Toda, Exponges oz ALT < A
Ha S T B4, 1 5%

Tha Ceat-HEATLHT £INTE At 0 af [T Bawenotel Shokos i

1 ==~rrl



1NBAHT OF T3 G Lraralyn

Statement of movements in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2016
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Staternent of financial posidon
as at 30 June 2016
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016
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Notes to the financial statemernts
for the year ended 30 June 2016
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

) Cof recintion This aor Last Year
1 b
Drepruciion Criivoo Eoquygeront 1208 |,
Db Compubar Taguipnenc AL B.T5%%
Dheprecoindion CTic0 Fammge & Buchines kL] theEhl
Mepricmion Iroinetans) Aasis B2,13% T3A6L
74,430 Shp ¥
1 Pt arinl Bt

Year Endad 30 Hane A 3 1~ ] Acawm Dopn Back Wi
+ § ¥
Gl Expnl|mueast 18,300 12,211 SORF
Cormute Ecquliiru:ni 71,65 16,022 255N
CIffice Fiings & Famidom: el B, 355 41,22
Prommogigonl Assels a4 300,602 154500
ThE,342 A} 25 5

Tirar Emded X0 e AarH
[ e Ecadpement 18,305 L7 6373
Compute: Equipment 5L17% 3% B 14 352
DA Tecw: Fetlogs & Fumilume L2 3R2 14161 RHE b1
Prommtonl Asers 521 387 40E T 11T6BS
LE LY H20 601 [hah3a

d Aadalad Farikas
The soeiery ey comeluared tomsantns: i mlftod prnbes or fellows:

Party Fesdol o sl o TramsaedkHy

Gary Langefscd Forresr Bcard bambac Lagdbard (Pret Cwmer), Fordng
[ & rubibed proiy

Zarsh Hull Eoand idearber Lunling pad bor cubnbed: farty,
Fatmsrabuip fos recereed Mmom
selntesl pasty

Towal cent g v the 26 Lomne St t Lnmiced wheee Garr Laoysfard (Fopmer Board Wembeo
in A pace awilec wae B11G381 C2005% SEIE, 1065 Mo snipets e eultHding 11 poar el
Mua rohted parry delis have bton wtinen ofof oggiven during due yose (2015 $19i0,

L) Canlingent Diaklilks
Thezre are vng comtingseul Enldltlcs . yrae ol (200 5 30T

[P



NOTA BET DT LK EHHA TR
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HEART OF THE CITY
Annual General Meeting
Level 2
26 Lorne St

Auckland CBD
25% October 2016

Minutes

The Chairman Martin Snedden declared the meeting open at 6.00pm
Apologies

Apologies were received from Terry Gould, Jason Copus and Chris Cherry.
That the apologies be received

Moved: Martin Snedden

Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush

CARRIED

Confirmation of Minutes from 2015 Annual General Meeting (AGM)

That the minutes of the AGM held on 29 October 2015 be approved

Moved: Sarah Hull
Seconded: Andrew Stringer
CARRIED

Chair’s Report

The Chair’s Report was presented by Martin Snedden, in the absence of Terry
Gould. Refer Appendix 1.

That the Chair’s report for the preceding year be received
Moved: Martin Snedden

Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush
CARRIED



Treasurer’s Report

Viv Beck, in the absence of Jason Copus, Treasurer, spoke to the meeting
regarding the Financial Statements for the year end 30" June 2016.

That the Annual Financial Statements for 2015/16 be approved

Moved: Shane McMahon
Seconded: Greg Moyle
CARRIED

That the overall level of funding from the 2017/18 Heart of the City BID targeted
rate be increased by 5% from 2016/2017 rate

Moved: Shane McMahon
Seconded: Regan Hall
CARRIED

That the Executive Committee be authorised to pay reasonable remuneration to
the Executive Committee Chairperson under Rule 12.2

Moved: Shane McMahon

Seconded: Andrew Stringer

CARRIED

That the proposed budget for 2017/18 be approved
Moved: Shane McMahon

Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush

CARRIED

Appointment of Auditor

That the Executive Committee is directed to reappoint RSM New Zealand to
conduct the audit on the 2016/17 accounts

Moved: Shane McMahon
Seconded: Regan Hall

CARRIED

Special Resolution

That the three-year BID programme agreement to 30 October 2019 between
Auckland Council and Heart of the City Inc. be approved

Moved: Martin Snedden
Seconded: Greg Moyle
CARRIED

Chief Executive’s Report

Viv Beck gave an overview of Heart of the City’s key areas of focus over the last
year and a summary of the 2016/17 Annual Plan.



9. Retiring Executive Committee Members

As contained in Rule 14.5 of our Constitution, the following Board members will
remain on Heart of the City Executive Committee as their third anniversary date
has not yet been reached:

e Jason Copus

e Andrew Stringer

e  Chris Cherry

e Paddy Stafford-Bush

e Regan Hall

At each Annual General Meeting at least 3 of the Executive Committee members
shall retire from office, but shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Resignations were received from the following Executive Committee members:
e Terry Gould

e Shane McMahon

e Sarah Hull

10. Election/confirmation of Executive Members

Nominations were received:

e Martin Snedden

e Shane McMahon

e Sarah Hull

e Greg Moyle (Moved from the floor)

That Martin Snedden, Shane McMahon, Sarah Hull and Greg Moyle be declared
elected to the Executive Committee for a three-year term ending at the 2019
AGM.

Moved: Andrew Stringer
Seconded: Regan Hall
CARRIED

Outgoing Chair — That Terry Gould be thanked for his contribution to Heart of
the City over many years

Moved: Martin Snedden
Seconded: Paddy Stafford-Bush
CARRIED

11. Martin Snedden opened the floor for general business

There was general discussion regarding:

Christmas Decorations
Carparking and accessibility

Meeting was declared closed at 7.21pm



Appendix 1 -Chairman’s Report -
Heart of the City 2016
Terry Gould

2016 has been an excellent year for Heart of the City. This has come off the back of a period of
challenge and change yet the organisation is all the stronger for it and is now moving up a notch in
terms of its representation and delivery to central city business.

The recent strength of the national economy is being translated into significant growth in the
Auckland region, bringing with it both opportunities and demands. Our destination and marketing
events programme is utilising multiple communication channels to draw more people into the city
with the consequential purchasing spend increasing significantly ahead of our competitors. At the
same time however, we are being confronted with the intrusive reality of several major
construction projects in the CBD which while providing longer term future benefits for the city,
will impact significantly on some sectors of our membership in the short term. HOTC therefore has
a significant role to play in monitoring these activities and advocating on behalf of our members
during this period of quite significant disruption.

Our Chief Executive Viv Beck is thriving in her role and during her first year has quickly come to
grips with HOTC'’s special type of business and very effectively drawn on her previous multi sector
experience to the benefit of this organisation. Recent legislative requirements (such as Health and
Safety) while requiring significant operational change have been implemented seamlessly. The
office continues to run smoothly and the level of information and reporting to the Executive
Committee is impressive. In her report to this meeting, Viv will no doubt mention HOTC’s
achievements this past year. What she will probably not mention is the passion, enthusiasm and
apparent boundless energy which she applies to her role. Thank you Viv for an outstanding year
and we look forward to some of the exciting new initiatives you have planned.

Of course these achievements continue to be underpinned by the dedication, devotion and plain
hard work from the team in the HOTC office. Thank you all once again for your loyalty through
these recent times of change through which you have all navigated so amazingly well both as
individuals and as a tight knit, highly professional team.

In the same manner, this past year the members of your Executive Committee have continued to
show great dedication and commitment to the ongoing effectiveness of HOTC’s impact on Auckland
business. Their input at a strategic level has been invaluable and they have continued to make
across-the-board improvements to systems and organisational governance. One such change has
seen the role of Chair being expanded to that of a professional paid director, bringing with it a level
of experience and process appropriate for an organisation such as HOTC.

We were therefore very pleased to recently have Martin Snedden join the Executive Committee
and accept the appointment of Chair following my stepping down from that role. Martin’s
experience and business reputation precede him and HOTC now has the potential to benefit greatly
from his leadership at such an important and exciting stage of the organisation’s development.

Soitis with a great sense of optimism that [ am standing down from the HOTC Executive Committee
at a time when HOTC is in such a good health. Its leadership is strong and experienced, its vision is
clear and well articulated and the future is bright. I have been personally enriched by the
experience of working with some remarkable people and my passion for this city remains strong.
[ am confident that Heart of the City is will continue to achieve great things for the benefit of central
Auckland business.

ENDS
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HEART OF THE CITY

A letter
from our

Che

I

Auckland is evolving as an international city and there have been many exciting
developments this year. The city centre continues to evolve physically and key indicators
such as retail spend and pedestrian foot traffic in the inner city continue to increase.
Prime office and retail vacancy rates have reduced, with many new brands on offer in
prime locations. This progress has evolved during a particularly difficult period which
Heart of the City faced this year. | would like to pay tribute to our staff who remained
passionate and focused on Heart of the City’s day to day work and delivering benefit to
our members.

We continue to promote the city’s breadth of events, dining, shopping, arts and culture,
and entertainment, positioning the city as a diverse and exciting place to be. We also
sponsor and deliver events that bring people to the city and create a sense of vibrancy.
Our WHERE NEXT™ app has put us at the forefront of mobile technology and provides
inspiration for locals and visitors about where to go and what to do when they come to
the city.

This year we advocated strongly for a long-term Port study that takes account of the
economic, social, environmental and other impacts of expansion into the Waitemata
Harbour. Our work, along with others, has successfully achieved this review, due for
completion in 2016.

We have played a key role in influencing projects funded by the City Centre Targeted
Rate, which are transforming the city physically. A programme is in place for the next
10 years that continues the pace of transformation across the city. We have also seen
progress with operational matters, such as initiatives to improve safety.

This is a time of unprecedented change for Auckland and Heart of the City is well
positioned as it moves into a new era of leadership.

o

Terry Gould
Chair, Heart of the City Executive Committee

2015
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Welcome

As a frequent visitor to Auckland over many years, | have watched the city
change and it has a stronger heart now, with so much more to see and do. It
looks and feels different, with new precincts, heritage buildings restored, street
upgrades and revamped public spaces. Joining Heart of the City, | have felt
welcome and excited by the opportunities ahead.

A recent survey™* of Aucklanders indicates that more than 70% of respondents
agree or strongly agree that Heart of the City plays an important role in
ensuring Auckland’s city centre is vibrant and successful. This is a great
foundation to build on.

We know there is more that can and must be done. There is growing
recognition that if Auckland city is successful, that is good for the rest of the
region and for New Zealand. However, the transformation to an international
city, with rapid growth and change, will present both challenges and
opportunities. We will need to continue to work effectively with our members
to ensure we focus on the things that will make the biggest difference in
building a successful city centre for business.

. *Source: Heart of the City
Viv Beck Annual Survey, Buzz Channel,
Chief Executive September 2015

The
HOTCity
feam

Angela Barlie Office Co-ordinator
VivBeck Chief Executive

Kate Cleaver Marketing Manager
Billie Drew Digital Marketing Specialist
Emma Jones Brand Manager

Tania Loveridge Centre Manager

Jane Stewart Events and Sponsorship Manager
Erin Taylor Events and Sponsorship Executive
Riah Vather Marketing Executive
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10,800 Heart of the Cit\/

businesses ’T]@IM berShlp

Heart of the City members are property owners, business owners, occupants and
tenants of commercially rated property that sits within our defined boundary.

We are a membership organisation, governed by a constitution and eligible businesses
4 and property owners within the Heart of the City boundary can join to gain voting

Commercially
rated
properties

rights and other benefits of membership. There are a large number of eligible
businesses and property owners within our boundary and we continue to
encourage active membership.

1% Education
2% Manufacturing

Real Estate 2% Construction
4% \Wholesale trade
43% 2% Media and Comms
Health Care
Professional, 2% Artand Recreation
Finance &
Administrative .
Services 7% Other

Retail

Thereis alarge
and diverse

business mix in
the C|ty Cen’[re ENGAGING WITH OUR MEMBERS

We continue to receive positive feedback about our regular member communications
and we have a growing number of followers across our media channels. Our
communication covers a range of topics relevant to the city centre, including updates
on major projects across the city. This year we sought to understand the views of our
members on specific projects and priorities - including Auckland Council's Long Term
Plan and the views of businesses and property owners in the High Street District about
the recent O'Connell Street upgrade and the future of High Street.

7% Accommodation and Food

We have also had great involvement from a number of retail, hospitality and restaurant
HEART OF THE CITY members across our Restaurant Month, Fashion in the City and Winter campaigns.
Our members are at the heart of what we do to champion a successful city centre for
business. With so much happening across the city, it's important that we are attuned

to their needs and we will continue to refine our approach to how we engage and
communicate with our members.
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OUR PRECINCTS
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A City centre that is
DOSitive for business

Our focus for advocacy this year has been on
achieving positive outcomes that are good
for the city centre and for business.

City centre transformation through our role on
the Auckland City Centre Advisory Board

v\ ¢ |

We influenced the allocation of

City Centre Targeted Rate (CCTR)
funding for city centre transformation
projects across the future ten year '
programme.

We were instrumental in crafting and securing a new look City Centre
Targeted Rate for 2016 to 2025. This no longer funds the consequential opex
or depreciation of completed projects, meaning that the $20M collected per
annum will fund the capital cost of city centre transformation projects.




PORTS AND WATERFRONT

This year we continued to our highlight our concerns around the
impact that incremental decision making, and a lack of certainty
around planning regulations, could have on our waterfront and
wider city development. We did this through our Unitary Plan
submission process, as well as lobbying to Auckland Council,
alongside other key partners, on the need for a comprehensive
long term Port study. We advocated that this study should include
assessment of economic, social, environmental and other impacts,
and analysis of options to facilitate effective decision making for the
long term that support a liveable and growing international city.

Success came during 2015, with confirmation from Council of a
holistic, far reaching Port Future Study to be completed in 2016.
We now have an ongoing role in this study as a member of the
Stakeholder Reference Group. We will continue to represent
the interests of business and the wider city centre environment
through this process until its completion.

TRANSPORT, INCLUDING
PARKING

During 2014, we lobbied Auckland Transport to consider
prioritising short-term parking over long-term parking spaces
in their city centre parking buildings. In early 2015, Auckland
Transport removed earlybird parking from their buildings and
over time, have increased the cost of long term parking. This
strategy is resulting in an increased number of parking spaces
made available for short term use - supporting business, retail
and other activity in the city centre.

We have remained close to key transport projects in the City
Centre, including the City Rail Link, and have been involved in early
conversation around the potential for Light Rail in the City Centre,
highlighting the need for an integrated transport plan and a highly
visible consultation process.

SAFETY

We have continued to focus on the importance of improving

the perception and experience of safety in the city centre. We
have done this through our role on the Mayoral Task Force

and Safety Team; submissions on the Local Approved Products
(psychoactives) and Alcohol Policies; supporting the retention

of 24/7 alcohol bans in the city centre; ongoing liaison with

key agencies including NZ Police as well as with agencies that
work with vulnerable communities including the homeless; and
supporting and funding a number of safety and crime prevention
programmes, which are outlined later in this report.

HEART OF THE CITY ‘ 2015

THE AUCKLAND UNITARY PLAN

This year our involvement in Council's Unitary Plan was through
the hearings process. We participated in hearings for Heritage

- with a goal of achieving greater certainty for property owners,
as well as highlighting the importance of including a range of
incentives in the plan; and the Port precinct - seeking non-
complying status for further reclamation in advance of any wider
long term Port study being completed. The outcome of our
participation will be known in 2016.

Submissions made:

Alcohol Control Bylaw

Auckland Council Long Term Plan
20152025

Auckland Regional Land Transport Plan 2015-2025
Local Alcohol Policy
LLocal Approved Products Policy

Parking Discussion Document for the
Auckland Region

Skypath Resource Consent

Signage Bylaw

Street Trading and Events Bylaw

MEDIA

We have continued to be active in the media, taking the
opportunity to champion the city centre across a range of topics,
including the arrival of new business, particularly new retailers, as
well as across parking, developments, events and other matters
affecting city centre businesses.

A WELL MANAGED CITY CENTRE

We work with Council, Auckland Transport and other agencies

to achieve a well-managed and co-ordinated city centre. This

year we have reviewed and advised on applications for filming,
events, utility upgrades and other activity in the street to ensure
that what is proposed will not unnecessarily disrupt business, as
well as ensuring that the right level of consultation with affected
businesses is carried out. We have continued to facilitate business
enquiries, and liaison with the appropriate agencies to see
resolution of day-to-day operational issues in the city centre.



Making the city

centre a destination
Marketing & Events

Heart of the City invested in the urban side of this story across
Winter 2014, with a campaign which positioned the city as a
vibrant, diverse and exciting place to be. This ran alongside the
launch of our new mobile, city guide app, WHERE NEXT™.

In 2014 we took a leap forward in
how Auckland was promoted as a
destination, joining up in partnership
with ATEED (Auckland Tourism
Events and Economic Development)
to deliver the urban articulation of
our joint creative platform, AKL: The
Show Never Stops (winners of the
Lifestyle/Travel/Leisure category - NZ
Marketing Awards, 2014).

WHERE NEXT™ puts the Heart of the City at the forefront of
mobile technology. It is an exciting development in terms of
providing inspiration to locals and visitors to the heart of the city,
and in terms of what it will enable us to do in the future. The app
is a handy utility that provides information on where to go and
what to do next when visiting the central city. Importantly, it builds
on a fast growing global trend to smartphone mobile use and the
effectiveness of personalised and relevant content delivered direct
to a mobile device.

Key Highlights of 2014/15

Launched AKL: The Show
Never Stops joint creative
platform and story for
Auckland with partners
ATEED, the first time
Auckland has had a single
unified marketing story.

Consumer spending for
the total Heart of the
City was up +8.7% during
the 12 weeks of Winter
2014 campaign, an
incremental $24m.

Continued our NZME.
media partnership
delivering over $900k
in value, thereby
increasing the visibility
of our marketing.

Social media channels
continue to grow, with
120,000 Facebook fans
for Heart of the City and
weekly email subscribers
of 38,000.

Our WHERE NEXT™
App has been very
successful with 35,000
downloads, and more
than 1,060 users of the
app every day.

Our website visits grew
by 22% Year on Year,
with 1.5m total visits
and 920,000 unique
visitors.
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WINTER CAMPAIGN 2014
The Show Never Stops

The task for Winter 2014 was to deliver an engaging
campaign that cemented the Heart of the City as the place
to go to experience where The Show Never Stops’ - or put
plainly, showcase the breadth and depth of experiences that
you will only find in the city.

We leveraged the media partnership with NZME to put ‘the
show’ on Aucklanders radar during winter, with editorial
that focused on the diversity of events and experiences on
offer. For example, every Monday for 12 weeks we curated
Aucklanders Top 5 Tips of things to do in the central city
and shared them on the NZ Herald and via social media.
Each week, key titles like Viva, TimeOut, Canvas and
Weekend ran editorial focusing on the city (with the advert
sitting alongside). This approach substantiated the claim
(via editors and trusted titles) that the show never stopped,
and was backed up by the WHERE NEXT app, as the hub of
all that was on offer, creating a high level of interaction and
participation with social media (@and mobile) at its heart.

Where the suburbs end,
the heart of the city begins.
When the cafés wind down,
the restaurants fill up.
The shopping goes on,

as the nightlife kicks off.

|  The curtain may fall,

but the show never stops.

HeartoftheCity.co.nz

« 8.7% increase in spending for Heart of the City (over 12
weeks of winter) or $24m, while competitor spending
was up just 3%

« 85% had positive perceptions of the central city as
being aspirational, cultured and vibrant and 77% were
motivated to visit the city as a result of the advertising

WHERE NEXT™ APP

« A free, handy city guide app that encourages people
to stay longer and do more in the city, by providing
inspiration of where to go and what to do next

» An updated NEW and IMPROVED version launched
July 2015 putting the user in control of the type of
suggestions they're looking for i.e. Food / Drinks /
Coffee / Events etc.

O%1R0O BAR AND
RRASSERIF

» 35,000 downloads
« 64% said it encourages them to visit (vs 52% last year)

« 75% would recommend it to others (vs 71% last year)



CITY DEALS 2014
16 June - 31 August

« City Deals, involving 92 city centre businesses, was
a chance to drive people to retail and hospitality
businesses during the quieter winter months by
offering great value, short or long
term deals to Aucklanders.

» Deals were promoted every 2 days, via Facebook,
our Website, WHERE NEXT™ App, and e-newsletter.

» 15,500 deals claimed, + 29% on 2013.

RESTAURANT MONTH 2014
3JULY - 31 AUGUST

 Fourth year of our signature dining event
» Sponsored by American Express

« Over 100+ participating restaurants, 20+ events,
including the international chef dining series, and
second year of Street Eats, (23,000 visitors)

9 week campaign included Print Media, Outdoor,
Digital (including Facebook & Mobile), 120,000
copies of the A5 Event Guide inserted into the NZ
Herald late July

Editorial Partnership with Viva delivering 8 weeks of
coverage and over $600k worth of added value,
and PR valued at over $660k.

Spending +21% vs 2013 with participating
restaurants, and up +8.6% for total HOTC.

HEART OF THE CITY MAPS 2015

» 100,000 maps distributed via our Ambassadors to

visitors and hotel concierges

Q'- Restaunnt-v iy
" =Monthiz &1

OvumOmwoffusandWQQfao&
lmgndm drougboutm
Visit heartofthecity.cans
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CRUISE SEASON 2014/15
Guide to AKL in a Day

« With over 158,000 Cruise Guests, on 94+ Ships
coming in almost daily over summer, our guide
to Auckland in a day has been developed to keep
visitors in the city centre, and experience the best of
what we have to offer.

» 50,000 guides were handed out at Queens Wharf
via Heart of the City Ambassadors, and the Queens

Wharf and Karanga Plaza kiosks.

» Extremely positive feedback from cruise guests,
Cruise NZ, city centre businesses, i-site staff

and ATEED.

2014/15 Sponsored events

ARTWEEK 2014
10 - 19 October

Artweek Auckland is run

by the NZ Contemporary
Art Trust with the aim of
growing Auckland's visual
arts audience through
discovery and discussion.
Heart of the City is a founding
sponsor of the event and
activates the central city
with events and activities
alongside a complementary

communications programme.

Farmers Santa Parade 2014

Sunday 30 November

For over 80 years the
Farmers Santa Parade has
announced the start of
Christmas to Aucklanders.
Heart of the City has been
a long term supporter of
this iconic event that brings
massive crowds into the
central city for this annual
celebration.

NZ Fashion Weekend 2014
29 - 31 August

As a key part of NZ Fashion
Week - NZ Fashion Weekend
celebrates the fashion
industry with Aucklanders
and visitors with in-season
shows and parties. As a
founding sponsor of Fashion
Week, Heart of the City
supported this styslish event
in 2014 at the Viaduct
Events Centre.

Auckland Arts Festival 2015
4 - 27 March

The Auckland Arts Festival
is a cultural celebration

of diversity, people, place,
culture and art and
embodies the spirit of
Auckland. Heart of the City
is proud to be a founding
and on-going sponsor of this
internationally acclaimed
event that will be delivered
annually from 2016.




2015/16 Marketing

activity to date
1 July 2015 -1 0ct 2015

$2.2m

Additional
value via
the NZME.
Partnership
in 2015

57

Growth of
Advertising
Awareness
achieved

Early Results

(0)
+ q
#MYHEARTMARK

Explore more heartmarks at

In consumer heartofthecity.co.nz
spending, or
$264m




RESTAURANT MONTH 2015
1 July - 31 August
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CITY DEALS 2015
1 July - 31 August

« With significantly less investment in 2015, results
were still really strong

« Over 12,600 offer claims (achieved 80% of last
year's total 15,500 claims) with 75% less spend

12,600 Deals claimed

HEART OF THE CITY

« Fifth year of our signature dining event,
sponsored by American Express.

- ATEED partnered in this event, investing into a
marketing campaign for Wellington and
Christchurch - to drive visitation to Auckland.

» Over 100 restaurants participated with menu
offers, and over 30 in restaurant events, plus the
International Chef Dining Series, Street Eats
(14,000 visitors) and Wine Auckland (2,300 visitors)

» A dedicated Marketing and PR Campaign including
an Editorial Partnership with Viva which delivered
$700k editorial value (+16% on last year) and an
additional PR value of $650Kk.

« Visits to the Restaurant Month web pages were up
+7.3%, with 338k page views, versus 315k last year.

» +49% growth of awareness for Restaurant Month
to 67% in the last 12 months.

Showed growth of +11.3% amongst participating
restaurants, and +13.3% for total Heart of the City

2015




Website
total Visits
1,500,000 total

visits +22% a
on last year ﬁ'

| Zo
Unigue Web w@
Visitors :

920,000 WHERE NEXT™ App
unique visitors 35,000 downloads

Repeat Web
Visitor Rate Heart of the
41.8% b li City page
repeat visits 120,000 Likes

.l | HeartOfAKICity
eekly emai 13,700

database
38,000

subscribers HeartOfAKICity
4,000
followers

followers

As at October 2015



Improving the perception and experience of safety in the

city centre is a key priority for Heart of the City. Earlier in this
report we outlined our work to advocate for and collaborate
with others to address concerns raised by our members such
as the impact that anti-social behaviour has on the city.

We also support a number of practical programmes that
focus on crime prevention in the city centre:

CITYWATCH

In partnership with Auckland Council, we support the
CityWatch programme, which is focused on improving

the perception and experience of safety in the city centre,
primarily through enforcement of the city’s public nuisance
and safety bylaw. Over the course of the year, there has been
improvement in managing anti-social behaviour - following
additional CityWatch resource targeting peak periods and
joint patrols with NZ Police. We acknowledge however that
the city centre continues to have challenges in terms of
managing anti-social behaviour and associated activity. We
will continue to be active in this area.

STOREWATCH

This year the StoreWatch programme, a communications
network of more than 150 city centre retailers working together
to reduce retail theft, in partnership with Heart of the City and
NZ Police, has gone from strength to strength.

The number of retailers involved in the scheme has grown
significantly and through this a greater sense of community
between retailers has developed. The scheme has received
national recognition from NZ Police, and has since grown

to Wellington and is being planned for other Auckland retail
areas. A number of arrests have been made, and a wealth of
intelligence received, as a result of the communications
received via the network.

the staff feel a lot safer now that they are using StoreWatch
and not so isolated..every retail community should have it

Christine Sharma, Managing Director, Ruby NZ

HEART OF THE CITY

BARWATCH

This year we have continued to support the BarWatch
communications network - linking bars, the CityWatch team
and NZ Police. The scheme, established to improve the overall
night time environment of the city centre, continues to be a
vital link in preventing and responding to late night issues.

It has been very useful and in some cases instrumental
in keeping unwanted patrons out. We feel it really does
improve general safety in the CBD.

Rauairi Hatrick - Cassette 9

Change to City Centre Services

During the year we reviewed our service offering in the context

of our strategic direction and a decision was made to cease
our Heart of the City Guide (ambassador) programme.

Our ambassadors have been a valued part of our team and
we thank them for their contribution to the heart of the city.

2015




Monitoring the city
centres performance

We continue to see an upward positive PEDESTRIANS IN THE CITY
trend of the city centre’s key performance We monitor 24/7 pedestrian counts across 18 sites throughout the

indicators - including spending, vacancy rates 'ciFy centre. The'dataj frgely available from our interactive website,
is invaluable in identifying key trends across the year, as well as

and pedestnan counts. This is also reflected evaluating the impact on foot traffic from major events and other
in the overall business confidence in the city infrastructure upgrades.
centre, with a number of new businesses
arriving, as well as a Iarge number of private We have seen an overall year on year increase in total pedestrian
counts across the seven sites we monitor that have been in place

developments currently underway or planned . .

i ) ) for a full two years. This year we successfully secured City Centre
for in the future, evident by the growing Targeted Rate funding from Council to fund 50% of the ongoing
number of cranes on the skyline. operating costs of the pedestrian count programme from 2016-2025.

Pedestrians Total Pedestrian Counts 2015
in the city (1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015) vs 2014 Counts

FOOT TRAFFIC KEY:

. ABOVE . AVERAGE
. BELOW . N/A*

*Comparable data not available

WATERFRONT

QUAY ST

BRITOMART

A
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FORT ST
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HEART OF THE CITY | 2015

\Vacancy
Rates

office
(from 25% in 2014)

4 % Prime
To Year End June 2015, the City Centre Results were: o

2 5% Retail

Transactions
up Vs a 20 year
o) average of '
) k1
*Source: Colliers
Compared to same time last year § el
P 14 (2015 figures)

Source: Marketview Ltd. July 2015

N These perceptions below highlight a need to
Pe rce ptl O n S continue to tell the story of the city centre to
more people - and promote the city centre as a
-I: th t place that is vibrant and dynamic. There is also
O e Cl y an ongoing priority to advocate for improved
access into the city centre.

C e | | t re *Heart of the City Annual Survey, Buzz Channel, September 2015
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of respondents to a recent Heart of of respondents agreed that the either agreed or strongly

the City survey* agreed or strongly city offers them a range of different agreed that they find it easy to
agreed that Auckland’s central city experiences. visit the central city,

is a vibrant and dynamic place, 22% neither agreed nor disagreed.

27% neither agreed nor disagreed.
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REM Hayes Audit

PO Box 9588
Newmarket, Auckland 1149

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Newmare o roacway

TO THE MEMBERS OF T“:E:i (2;527 Zgifz
HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED ' o

We have audited the financial statements of Heart of the City Incorporated on pages 5 to 14, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015 and the statement of financial performance, and statement of
movements in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

This report is made solely to the members, as a body, in accordance with the rules of Heart of the City Incorporated.
Our audit has been undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the members as a body, for our work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Board's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The board of Heart of the City Incorporated is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and applicable Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice and for such internal control as the board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand).

Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that present fairly the
matters to which they relate in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion.

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests in, Heart of the City Incorporated.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Financial Performance
The 2014 audit opinion was qualified by the previous auditors due to uncertainty surrounding the quantification
of the extent of fraudulent activity.

Given the circumstances, the previous auditors were unable to determine whether further adjustments and
reclassifications to the statement of financial performance were necessary for the year ended 30 June 2014.
Our opinion on the current period's statement of financial performance is also modified because of the possible
effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period’s figures and the corresponding figures.

THE POWER OF REING EIMBERS TO00
AUDITITAX ICONSULTEING

RSMHayes Auditis 2 member of the RSM networlk and trades a5 RSM, RSM |5 Lhe trading name used by the members of the RSM network. Each member of the RSM netwark is an Independent
accounting and consulting frm which practices inits own right. The RSM network Is not lkself a separate tegal entily In any Jurisdiction.
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Qualified Opinion on Financial Performance

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding 2014 figures of the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements on pages 5 to 14 present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial performance of Heart of the City Incorporated for the year ended 30 June 2015 in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards and applicable Statements of Standard Accounting Practice.

Opinion on Financial Position

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 5 to 14 present fairly, in all material respects, the Statement of
Financial Position of Heart of the City incorporated as at 30 June 2015.

Other Matter

The financial statements of Heart of the City Incorporated for the year ended 30 June 2014 were audited by
another audit firm who expressed their qualified opinion dated 20 May 2015. Their qualification in respect of

financial performance on the 2014 financial statements was for the reasons noted in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion above.

K Sm

RSM Hayes Audit

29 October 2015

Auckland




HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Statement of financial performance
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Note 2015 2014 :
$ $
Income
Auckland City Contributions 4,322,839 4,269,853
Event and Sundry Income - 22,167
Big Little City Campaign Funding 673,734 595,966 f
4,996,573 4 887,986
Investment and Other Income
Net Dividend Received 1,005 990
Interest Received 7,175 1,846
Other Income 11 429484 -
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - 15,386
437,664 18,222
Total Income 1 5,434,237 4,900,208
|
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. .
P RS
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HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Statement of financial performance
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Expenses

ACC Levy

Accountancy Fees

Advdcacy

AGM Expenses

Ambassadors

Amortsation of Intangible Assets
Audit Fees — Grant Thornton New Zealand Audit
Audit Fees — RSM Hayes Audit
Bank Fees

Committee Expenses

Committee Wages

Community Donations
Computer/Phone Maintenance
Contractor Expenses
Depreciation

Education/Seminars

Events, Sponsorship & Advertising
Forensic Accounting and Legal Expenses
Forgiveness of Loan

General Expenses

Insurance

Interest

Legal Fees

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Membership Communication
Office Services

Patking (Staff)

Payroll Processing

Pedicabs

Penalties

Powet

Printing, Postage & Stationety
Prior Period Assets Written Down
Recruitment Expense

Rent & OPEX

Salary and Wages

Security

Mote 2015

4,453

14,039

239,134

1,318

216,561

7 117,354
10,866

14,500

1,248

1,150

450

20,273

254,472

6 94,304
8 1,910,018
12 401,861
10 4400
15,525

17,203

73

11,408

9,830

20,122

24,823

4,835

2,756

2,996

11,927

2 48,879
84,013

118,162

736,939

55,306

2014

5,095
27,660
270,671
785
238,721
30,790
14,285
287

1,325
14,846
1,200
26,739
286,911
104,578
370
3,306,660

4,400
36,505
42,466

22
13,251

7,821 !
28,973

6,259 :

3,389

7,091

323

3,965

19,149

106,417
903,821
121,012

The accompanying noles form part of these financial statements.

RSM |



HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Statement of financial performance
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Expenses (continued)}

Telephone/Internet

Website Management

Where Next App Operational Expenses
Total Expenses

Net Surplus (Deficit)

Note

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

2015 2014
$ $
13,254 15,938
21,780 25,610
122,350 -
4,629,082 5,677,334
805,155 (771,126)
7
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HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Statement of movements in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Equlty at 1 July

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the Yeat

Total Equity at 30 June

The accompanying notes form part of these financlal statements.

2015 2014

s $
68,123 839,249
805,155 (771,126) |
873,278 68,123
8




HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2015

Note 2015 2014
$ $ :
Equity :
Retained Farnings 873,278 68,123 ":
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 264,173 . 640,488 ;
Income Received in Advance 223,333 142,372
487,506 782,860
Total Equity & Liabllitles 1,360,784 850,983 >
Current Assets
Caslh & Cash Equivalents 408,835 41,919
Shozt Term Deposits 319,613 57,901
Other Receivables 59,542 107,597
Settlement Receivables 14 115,000 -
Accounts Receivable 54,11 80,210
Fetry Building Suspensory Loan - Current 10 4,400 . 4,400
961,581- 292,026
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 186,839 330,367
Capital Work in Progress 10,000 - -
2 196,839 330,367
Investments
Fetry Building Suspensory Loan — Non Current 10 30,800 ' 35,200
Intangible Assets
Website 134,012 193,390
Trademarks _ 5125 -
Intangible Wortk in Progress 32427 -
7 171,564 193,390
399,203 558,957
1,360,784 850,983
29 /101
Date ' '
e \ 12 l aYell > .
Ja301 ‘Copus, Treas\rer Date
1
The accompanying notes form part of these financial stalements.
9
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HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015

1

Statement of Accounting Policies

These are the financial statements of Heart of the City Incorporated. Heart of the City
Incorporated is an Incorposated Society established under the Incorporated Societies Act 1908.
The financial statements have been prepated in accordance with generally accepted accounting
pracuce.

The Society has chosen not to adopt the New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“NZ IFRS”). The decision not to adopt is consistent with exemption
provided by External Reporting Board (“XRB”) A1. XRB Al provides a choice to certain
qualifying entities to either adopt NZ IFRS or to continue to apply New Zealand Financial
Reporting Standards (“NZ FRS”). The Society is a qualifying entity on the basis that it is not
considered large (less than $20m revenue and $10m total assets).

Heart of the City Incorpotated has adopted all available differential reporting exemptions.

Measurement System

The measurement systemn adopted is that of historical cost.
Particular Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by Heart of the City
Incorporated in the preparation of these financial staternents.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Deptreciation 1s recognised in the Statement of financial petformance to write off the cost of an
item of property, plant & equipment, less any residual value, over its expected useful life, at the
rates listed below.

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken into account in
determining the financial performance for the year.

Rate Method
Office Equipiment 16% - 67% DV
Computer Equipment 16% - 60% DV
Fittings and Furniture 11.4% -30% DV
Promotional Assets 10% - 48% DV

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values ate reviewed at each reporting date.

Operating Leases

Leases under which all the risks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are _
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments ate charged as an expense in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are valued at anticipated realisable value. An estimate is made for doubtful
debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year end. Bad debts are written off during
the pertod in which they are identified.

Investments

Investinents are stated at cost.

10
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HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015

Goods and Services Tax

Financial information in these accounts is recorded exclusive of GST with the exception of
receivables and payables, which include GST. GST payable or receivable at balance date is included
in the appropriate category in the Statement of Financial Position.

Intangibles

The website and app are accounted fot using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are
amortised on a diminishing value basis over their estimated useful life, as these assets aze
considered finite. Residual vahies and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the asset
which it relates. Other expenditute is recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
The trademarks are recognised at cost and are not amortised as they are not considered to have a
finite useful life. : :

Rate Method

Website/Where Next App 50% DV

Accounts Payable
Trade and other payables reptesent liabilides for goods and services provided to Heatt of the City
Incorpotated ptior to the end of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts ace unsecured.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which ate subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue
Revenue shown in the Statement of Finaacial Performance comprises the amounts received and
receivable by way of grants and sponsorship.

Investment Income
Interest is accounted for as earned.

Income Received in Advance

Income received in advance relates to campaign income received where there are unfulfilled
obligations for Heart of the City Incorporated to provide services in the future. These are recorded
as revenue as the obligations are fulfilled.

Tax
From 1 July 1999 the entity was exempt from income tax under section CW 40(1) of the Income
Tax Act 2007.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. The
Financial Reporting Act 2013 (“FRA 2013”) applies to any reposting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2014 and entities can no longer report under NZ FRS for accounting periods begtaning on
or after 1 April 2015. As Heaxt of the City Incorporated does not have a statutory obligation to
prepare general purpose financial statements, it has the option to either elect to prepate Special
Purpose Financial Statements or General Purpose Financial Statements. As at the date the fmancial
statements were approved for issue, management has not made any decision as to which approach
it will take.

11
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HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015

2 Propetty Plant and Equipment
Year Ended 30 June 2015

Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Office Fittings & Futnitute
Promotional Assets

Capital Work in Progress — MFP Banners

Year Ended 30 June 2014
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Office Fittings 8 Furmture
Promotional Assets

Cost Accum Depn Book Value
$ $ $
18,300 11,917 6,383
52,178 37,826 14,352
122,582 74,161 48,421
523387 405,705 117,682
716,448 529,609 186,839
10,000 - 10,000
726,448 529,609 196,839
31,168 22362 8,806
67,450 51,975 15,475
130,288 73,812 56,476
999,781 750,170 249,611
1,228,687 898,320 330,367

A review was undertaken of the asset schedule during the year which resulted in impairment ot
additional depreciation adjustments to some assets, primarily of a promotional nature. The net
etfect of these changes has been recorded in the Statement of Financial Performance as Prior

Period Assets Written Down.

3 Related Parties

The society has conducted transactions with related pazties as follows:

Party Relationship
Board Member

Gary Langsford

Sarah Hull

Denise L'Estrange-Corbet

John Courtney

Alex Swney

Board Member

Boatd Member

Former Board Member

Chief Executive

Transaction
Landlord (Part Owner), Funding
paid to related party

Funding paid to related party,
Partnership fee received from
related party

" Honotarium

Partnership fee received from
related party

Contractor: Services - Provided
via AGS Services Limited

Total rent paid to the 26 Lotne Street Limited where Gary Langsford (Board Member) is 2 past
owner was §118,612 (2014: $106,417). Gary Langsford was also 2 board member of NZ
Contemporary Arts Trust which received $23,000 for Art Week from Heart of the City

Incorporated during the year.

i2
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HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015

3

Related Parties {continued)

Sarah Hull is an employee of Britomart Association Company which paid a partnership fee of
$25,000 during the year. Britomatt Association Company also paid $1,100 to Heart of the City
Incorporated for the production of an installation related to the Winter Campaign. This amount
was outstanding as at 30 June 2015,

Alex Swney was dismissed from Heart of the City Incorporated as at 2 October 2014. He was
subsequently convicted for misapproptiation of funds from Heart of the City Incorporated.

No related patty debts have been written off or forgiven duging the year (2014: $Nil).
Contingent Liabliities
There ate no contingent liabilities at year end (2014: $Nil).

Capital Commitments
Thete are no capital commitments at year ead (2014: $Nil).

Operating Expenses include the following: 2015 2014
' $ $

Depreciation Office Equipment 1,707 2,532
Depreciation Computer Equipment _ 8,755 13,129
Depteciation Office Fittings & Furniture 8,481 9,943
Depteciation Promotional Assets 75,361 78,074
04,304 104,578

Intanglble Assets 2015 2014
$ $

Website and Where Next App at Cost 542,137 493,494
Less Accumulated Amostisation (408,125) (300,104)
Website and Where Next App 134,021 193,390
Trademarks : 5,125 -
Where Next App Wortk in Progress 32,427 -
171,564 193,390

Amortisation of Intangible Assets relates to the Website, Where Next App, and related assets. The

significant increase is due to the assets brought into the register in 2014 and 2015 which total
$221,909 and wete amortised at 50% from 1 July 2014, Of the total amortisation $102,625 relates
to these assets. '

Events, Sponsorship and Advertlsing

Expenditure cuts wete made to these azeas given the need to manage costs prudently while the
frand was investigated.

13

RSM




HEART OF THE CITY INCORPORATED

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2015

9 I._ease Cominitments

Lease commitments from non-cancellable operating leases at balance date are:

2015 2014

$ $

Current : 111,372 198,948
Non-Current 67,217 513,951
178,589 712,899

10 Ferry Building Partnership Suspensory Loan

Thete is a suspensoty loan to the Ferty Building Partnership for the amount of $35,200. This loan
is being forgiven in ten equal instalments of $4,400 upon each anniversary of the initial payment. If
the Ferty Building Partnership for any reason is not able to meet the tezms of the agreement, the
temaining loan balance will be payable to Heatt of the City Incorporated.

" Other Income 2015 2014
$ $

Insurance Claitns 55,968 -
Recovery of Misappropriated Funds 373,916 -
429,484 -

12 Forensic Accouniing and Legal Expenses

Forensic wark has been carried out by McGrathNicol and Russell McVeagh in relation to the
ongoing proceedings against the former CEQ, o

13 Potential Fraud [n 2015 Financial Year

As part of the investigation cartied out, McGrathNicol identified potentially fraudulent payments
for the year ended 30 June 2015 which total approximately $96,000.

14 Events After Balance Date and Contingent Assets

Legal Proceedings

Prior ta year end, Heart of the City Incorporated launched civil proceedings against its former
Chief Executive as a result of an investigation into his actions by an independent forensic
accountant. This included claims against two trusts which were alleged to have received Heart of
the City Incorporated funds taken improperly by its former Chief Executive Alex Swney. As at 30
June 2015, $258,916 had been received and a further $115,000 was due at that date in trespect of
these clains, which was subsequently received. :

In addition, a contingent asset existed at balance date relating to claims that had not yet been
settled, with an uncertain amount of recovery. Subsequent to balance date Heart of the City
Incorporated reached a final settlement in sespect of its claims against these trusts and a Fusther
$326,000 was recovered from the trusts, which will be recorded as income in the subsequent
financial year.

As at the date the financial statements were authorised for issue further civil proceedings were
ongoing.
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HEART OF THE CITY
Special General Meeting
Wed 17 June 2015

26 Lorne St

Level 1
Auckland

Minutes

The Chairman Terry Gould declared the meeting open at 5.30pm

1. Apologies

Apologies were received from Shale Chambers, Regan Hall, Denise L’Estrange-
Corbet, Gary Langsford and Sarah Hull.

Terry Gould put the motion that these apologies be accepted.
e Motion seconded by Jason Copus
e Motion carried unanimously

2. Chairman’s Report

The Chairman’s Report was presented by Terry Gould. (ref Appendix 1).

3. Financial Report

Jason Copus, Treasurer, spoke to the meeting regarding the audited accounts for
the year ending 30" June 2014.

Terry Gould put the motion that the audited Financial Statements and Annual
Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2014 accounts be approved.

e Motion seconded by Shane McMahon

e Motion carried unanimously

Meeting was declared closed at 5:43pm

* These Minutes will be accepted as a true record if no variations are received within 48 hours of
distribution



Appendix 1
HEART OF THE CITY - SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING — WED 17 JUNE 2015
CHAIR UPDATE

This Special General Meeting has been called with the specific purpose of approving HOTC's
audited accounts for the year ending 30 June 2014. However, as we have been through a
tumultuous period in recent months as Alex Swney’s criminal proceedings continue, this
meeting also provides a timely opportunity to briefly update members on HOTC activities
this year.

Since October’s AGM, former CEO Alex Swney pleaded guilty in January this year to
$1.7million of tax evasion charges brought by IRD and in April pleaded guilty to Serious
Fraud Office charges relating to the theft of $2.5 million from Heart of the City.

| know our members, along with the Executive Committee, have been shocked by the
guantum of the misappropriation, and what appears to have been a systematic, calculated
and very deliberate deceit over the last decade.

Mr Swney’s sentencing on the much-publicised charges brought by the IRD and the SFO is
scheduled for later this month (24 June).

However, Heart of the City’s civil action against Mr Swney and his related entities continues.
Our aim is to recover as much of the stolen money as possible. This action has included
placing freezing orders over assets owned by a range of associated parties. The civil action is
complex, and is expected to take some time. Realistically, it is highly unlikely that the full
amount of the stolen money will be recovered.

IMPROVED PROCESSES

Since these issues came to light, the Executive Committee has instituted reviews of internal
systems and controls. This process has been led by our interim (and independent) Chief
Executive David Wright.

Under the circumstances you will understand we have naturally become very focused on
governance and controls, and | can assure you that the Executive Committee has learnt a
great deal from this experience. As a result we have implemented some prudent changes to
a number of internal procedures, in particular around procurement and payments and we
are satisfied that these now reflect appropriate controls for this type of organisation.

In order to provide additional objectivity, from 1 July, an independent accountancy provider
will further support our internal team with preparation of monthly management accounts
and subsequent reporting to the Executive Committee.

We have also run a competitive tender process for the supply of audit services for 2015 and
I’'m pleased to announce that we have appointed RSM Hayes Audit to that role. RSM Hayes
is a highly respected specialist audit practice which has considerable experience with audits
for this type of organisation. As an additional measure, we will be expanding the scope of
the annual audit to include one or more randomly-timed forensic investigations designed to
specifically test for potential irregularities in our financial procedures.

* These Minutes will be accepted as a true record if no variations are received within 48 hours of
distribution



HOTC BUSINESS

There is no denying that the recent extraordinary events have been an unwelcome
distraction which have unfortunately involved considerable additional unbudgeted costs.

Since October last year, the Executive Committee has had to take a prudent approach to
operational spending and as a result, HOTC funding for some events and activities had to be
suspended in this past financial year. | believe we have now navigated through these
difficulties to a position where we can report a stable financial position and are able to
consider reinstatement of some of our previously suspended event support and
sponsorship.

Throughout this challenging period we have also been greatly encouraged by our own
partners, sponsors and the Auckland Council who have remained confident in the value we
offer to the central Auckland economy. I’'m pleased to report that our partners and sponsors
have not only continued their support for Heart of the City, but in several cases have
increased their commitment to our programmes into the future.

We have an amazing team of 12 staff who are committed, and dedicated to meeting the
needs of you, our members. I’'m sure you can imagine the challenges they’ve been through
in the past several months as these allegations unfolded. As a Board, we have worked hard
to stand beside our team, and to ensure the continuity of service they provide to members,
and to Auckland’s CBD. We are extremely proud of the HOTC team.

In recent months also, they have continued to deliver positive benefits for members:

e Web and social media channels are experiencing continued strong growth
(testament to the in-house resources assigned to these areas).

e Visits to our website are up 48% in the first 5 months of this year driven largely by
the content written and moderated by the HOTC team.

e QOur winter campaign is about to launch with the HOTC “Heartmarks” campaign
through Instagram and the ever popular Restaurant Month kicks off in August.

e Planning is well under way for our Christmas campaign as are events and campaigns
for the first half of 2106.

e More investment is planned for the CityWatch and StoreWatch programmes in
recognition of the importance of safety in the City.

e As the dialogue around the Ports of Auckland continues, HOTC will be involved in the
long awaited Port Future Study.

PERMANENT CHIEF EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENT

We are very much looking forward to our new Chief Executive, Viv Beck taking up her role on
6™ July.

* These Minutes will be accepted as a true record if no variations are received within 48 hours of
distribution



Viv comes to HOTC armed with a wealth of business experience across a range of
government, not-for-profit and private enterprises. She has the skills and understanding to
advocate strongly on behalf of our members as the city centre continues to grow as a
vibrant place to live, visit and do business. She has made it very clear that her first priority is
to get out and meet our members to ensure their views are reflected in HOTC’s ongoing
plans.

CONCLUSION

The Executive Committee, together with the HOTC management team, recently finalised our
annual plan for the 2015/16 year, and associated budgets have been approved. This was an
important process for all of us to move on from the challenges of the past year; to focus on
our membership and how we can improve our services to you over the coming months and
years.

We’ve been through an extremely challenging period. We have work still to do to recover
funds through the Civil Action but, importantly, we’ve learnt from our experience. There are
robust internal processes in place to address any similar risks in the future, our financial
position is sound, our new CEO begins next week, and there are exciting plans unfolding.

ENDS

* These Minutes will be accepted as a true record if no variations are received within 48 hours of
distribution
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audited accounts for the year ending 30 June 2014. However, as we have been through a
tumultuous period in recent months as Alex Swney’s criminal proceedings continue, this
meeting also provides a timely opportunity to briefly update members on HOTC activities
this year.

Since October’s AGM, former CEO Alex Swney pleaded guilty in January this year to
S1.7million of tax evasion charges brought by IRD and in April pleaded guilty to Serious
Fraud Office charges relating to the theft of $2.5 million from Heart of the City.

| know our members, along with the Executive Committee, have been shocked by the
guantum of the misappropriation, and what appears to have been a systematic, calculated
and very deliberate deceit over the last decade.

Mr Swney'’s sentencing on the much-publicised charges brought by the IRD and the SFO is
scheduled for later this month (24 June).

However, Heart of the City’s civil action against Mr Swney and his related entities continues.
Our aim is to recover as much of the stolen money as possible. This action has included
placing freezing orders over assets owned by a range of associated parties. The civil action is
complex, and is expected to take some time. Realistically, it is highly unlikely that the full
amount of the stolen money will be recovered.

IMPROVED PROCESSES

Since these issues came to light, the Executive Committee has instituted reviews of internal
systems and controls. This process has been led by our interim (and independent) Chief
Executive David Wright.

Under the circumstances you will understand we have naturally become very focused on
governance and controls, and | can assure you that the Executive Committee has learnt a
great deal from this experience. As a result we have implemented some prudent changes to
a number of internal procedures, in particular around procurement and payments and we
are satisfied that these now reflect appropriate controls for this type of organisation.



In order to provide additional objectivity, from 1 July, an independent accountancy provider
will further support our internal team with preparation of monthly management accounts
and subsequent reporting to the Executive Committee.

We have also run a competitive tender process for the supply of audit services for 2015 and
I’'m pleased to announce that we have appointed RSM Hayes Audit to that role. RSM Hayes
is a highly respected specialist audit practice which has considerable experience with audits
for this type of organisation. As an additional measure, we will be expanding the scope of
the annual audit to include one or more randomly-timed forensic investigations designed to
specifically test for potential irregularities in our financial procedures.

HOTC BUSINESS

There is no denying that the recent extraordinary events have been an unwelcome
distraction which have unfortunately involved considerable additional unbudgeted costs.

Since October last year, the Executive Committee has had to take a prudent approach to
operational spending and as a result, HOTC funding for some events and activities had to be
suspended in this past financial year. | believe we have now navigated through these
difficulties to a position where we can report a stable financial position and are able to
consider reinstatement of some of our previously suspended event support and
sponsorship.

Throughout this challenging period we have also been greatly encouraged by our own
partners, sponsors and the Auckland Council who have remained confident in the value we
offer to the central Auckland economy. I’'m pleased to report that our partners and sponsors
have not only continued their support for Heart of the City, but in several cases have
increased their commitment to our programmes into the future.

We have an amazing team of 12 staff who are committed, and dedicated to meeting the
needs of you, our members. I’'m sure you can imagine the challenges they’ve been through
in the past several months as these allegations unfolded. As a Board, we have worked hard
to stand beside our team, and to ensure the continuity of service they provide to members,
and to Auckland’s CBD. We are extremely proud of the HOTC team.

In recent months also, they have continued to deliver positive benefits for members:

e Web and social media channels are experiencing continued strong growth
(testament to the in-house resources assigned to these areas).

e Visits to our website are up 48% in the first 5 months of this year driven largely by
the content written and moderated by the HOTC team.

e QOur winter campaign is about to launch with the HOTC “Heartmarks” campaign
through Instagram and the ever popular Restaurant Month kicks off in August.

e Planning is well under way for our Christmas campaign as are events and campaigns
for the first half of 2106.

e More investment is planned for the CityWatch and StoreWatch programmes in
recognition of the importance of safety in the City.



e As the dialogue around the Ports of Auckland continues, HOTC will be involved in
the long awaited Port Future Study.

PERMANENT CHIEF EXECUTIVE APPOINTMENT

We are very much looking forward to our new Chief Executive, Viv Beck taking up her role
on6™ July.

Viv comes to HOTC armed with a wealth of business experience across a range of
government, not-for-profit and private enterprises. She has the skills and understanding to
advocate strongly on behalf of our members as the city centre continues to grow as a
vibrant place to live, visit and do business. She has made it very clear that her first priority is
to get out and meet our members to ensure their views are reflected in HOTC's ongoing
plans.

CONCLUSION

The Executive Committee, together with the HOTC management team, recently finalised our
annual plan for the 2015/16 year, and associated budgets have been approved. This was an
important process for all of us to move on from the challenges of the past year; to focus on
our membership and how we can improve our services to you over the coming months and
years.

We’ve been through an extremely challenging period. We have work still to do to recover
funds through the Civil Action but, importantly, we’ve learnt from our experience. There are
robust internal processes in place to address any similar risks in the future, our financial
position is sound, our new CEO begins next week, and there are exciting plans unfolding.

ENDS



